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AXA CHINA REGION INSURANCE COMPANY (BERMUDA) LIMITED

DIRECTORS' REPORT

The directors of AXA China Region Insurance Company (Bermuda) Limited (the “Company™) have pleasure in presenting their
annual report and the audited financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2024 prepared in accordance with the Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs™), and the provisions of the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITY
The principal activity of the Company is underwriting insurance business.

During the year, the Company has carried on employee compensation, motor vehicle and liability insurance business relating to
liabilities or risks in respect of which persons are required by law to be insured.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Company, prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong, for the vear ended
31 December 2024 are set out in the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income on pages 7 to 8 of the financial
statements.

During the year, dividends of US$1.49 per ordinary share, totalling US$287,700,000 (2023: US$127,600,000) were paid to the
ordinary shareholder.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in the Company’s share capital during the year are set out in note 20 to the financial statements.

RESERVES

Movements in the reserves of the Company during the year are set out in the statement of changes in equity.

PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in plant and equipment of the Company during the year are set out in note 13 to the financial stateiments.

SUBSIDIARIES AND ASSOCIATES

Details of the Company's subsidiaries and associates as at 31 December 2024 are set out in notes 13 and 16 respectively to the
financial statements.
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AXA CHINA REGION INSURANCE COMPANY (BERMUDA) LIMITED

DIRECTORS® REPORT- continued

DIRECTORS

The directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of this report were:

G.T. Watson

Y.W. Wan

C.5.H. Tong

C.J. Ryan

P.J. Fishwick

G.N. Jones (resigned on 24 April 2025)

In accordance with Bye-Law 74 of the Company’s Bye-Laws, all remaining directors retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for
re-election.

CONTROLLERS

The controllers of the Company, within the meaning of Section 9(1) of the Hong K.ong Insurance Ordinance, during the year and up
to the date of this report were:

AXA Assurances IARD Mutuelle
AXA SA (FAXA")

AXA ASIA S AS

AXA China Region Limited

T. Buberl

Y.W. Wan

C.S.H. Tong

DIRECTORS' AND CONTROLLERS' INTERESTS

No contracts of significance to which the Company, its subsidiaries, its holding companies or any of its fellow subsidiaries was
a party and in which a director or a controller of the Company had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted
at the end of the year or at any time during the year.

No properties were transferred, loans advanced to or obligations assumed by or for a director or a controller of the Company,
his nominees or associates (within the meaning of section 9 of the Insurance Ordinance) during the year. Amount paid or payable
to the directors or controllers of the Company for the year are shown in notes 9 and 32 to the financial statements.
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AXA CHINA REGION INSURANCE COMPANY (BERMUDA) LIMITED

DIRECTORS® REPORT- continued

ARRANGEMENTS TC ACQUIRE SHARES OR DEBENTURES

During the year, certain directors and controllers of the Company who were directors and controllers during the year held options
to subscribe for shares at fixed prices in AXA, the ultimate holding company of the Company, granted under the AXA SA Stock
Option Plan. Mr. T. Buberl partially and Mr. G.T. Watson wholly exercised their options under the AXA SA Stock Option Plan
to subscribe for AXA shares.

During the year, certain directors and the controllers of the Company who were directors and controllers during the year held
performance shares granted under the International Performance Share Plan of AXA. Under this Plan, AXA grants to certain
executives performance shares to acquire AXA shares at the end of the acquisition period without any exercise price. Mr. T.
Buberl], Mr. G.T. Watson, Ms. Y.W. Wan and Ms. C.S.H. Tong acquired AXA shares under this Plan.

During the year, a controller of the Company who was a controller during the year held performance shares dedicated to
retirement granted under the Performance Share Retirement Plan of AXA. Under this Plan, AXA grants to certain executives
performance shares to acquire AXA shares at the end of the acquisition period without any exercise price. Mr. T. Buberl acquired
AXA shares under this Plan.

During the year, Mr. T. Buberl, Mr. G.T. Watson, Ms. Y.W. Wan and Ms. C.S.H. Tong participated in the AXA Shareplan.
Under this Shareplan, AXA offers employees of the AXA Group opportunity to invest and hold units in funds in this Shareplan
which in turn hold AXA shares. This Shareplan enables such employees to purchase AXA shares indirectly through the funds
at fixed discounts to AXA share prices.

Apart from the above, at no time during the year was the Company, its subsidiaries, its holding companies or any of its fellow
subsidiaries a party to any arrangements to enable the directors and controllers of the Company to acquire benefits by means of
the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other body corporate.

AUDITORS

During the year, Messrs. KPMG were appointed as auditors of the Company in place of Messrs. PricewaterhouseCoopers by the
shareholder at the 2024 annual general meeting. The auditors, Messrs. KPMG will retire at the forthcoming annual general meeting

and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment.

A resclution will be submitted to the shareholder of the Company to re-appoint Messrs. KPMG as auditors of the Company.

On behalf of the Board
\ [\/\/\AIJ'\—’ /
Y. W. Wan M.C. Lam
DIRECTOR ASSISTANT SECRETARY
-') >~
20 APR 26 23 APR 235
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AXA CHINA REGION INSURANCE COMPANY (BERMUDA) LIMITED

Independent auditor’s report to the member of
AXA China Region Insurance Company (Bermuda) Limited

(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of AXA China Region Insurance Company (Bermuda} Limited {(“the
Company”) set out on pages 7 to 103, which comprise the statement of financial position as at 31 December 2024,
the statement of profit or loss, the statement of comprehensive income, the statement of changes in equity and the
statement of cash flows for the year then ended and notes, comprising material accounting policy information and
other explanatory information.

In our opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Company as at 31
December 2024 and of its financial performance and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong

Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(“HKICPA™).

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA.
Qur responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the
financial statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the HKICPA’s
Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the Code™) and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.

Information other than the financial statements and auditor’s report thereon

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises all the information included
in the annual report, other than the financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in
doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information,
we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.
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AXA CHINA REGION INSURANCE COMPANY (BERMUDA) LIMITED

Independent auditor’s report to the member of
AXA China Region Insurance Company (Bermuda) Limited (continued)

(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

Responsibilities of the directors for the financial statements

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary

to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

In preparing the financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to continue
as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of

accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. This
report is made solely to you, as a body, in accordance with Section 90 of the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda, and

for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents
of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and
are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain professional
scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

- Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations or the override of internal control.

- Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are

appropriate in the circumstances but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Company’s internal control.
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AXA CHINA REGION INSURANCE COMPANY (BERMUDA) LIMITED

Independent auditor’s report to the member of

AXA China Region Insurance Company (Bermuda) Limited (continued)
{Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements (continued)

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by the directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on
the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause
the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overali presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair

presentation.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the
audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during

our audit.

ro

Certified Public Accountanfs

8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road
Central, Hong Kong
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2 3 TR .'_né



AXA CHINA REGION INSURANCE COMPANY (BERMUDA) LIMITED

STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2024

Insurance revenue
Insurance service expenses
Net expenses from reinsurance contracts held

Insurance service result

Interest revenue

Other investment return

Net impairment loss on financial assets

Investment return

Net finance expenses from insurance contracts issued
Net finance income from reinsurance contracts held
Net change in investment contract liabilities

Net financial result

Fee income
Other income/(expense)
Other operating expense

Profit before taxation
Taxation

Profit for the year

Notes Year ended Year ended
31.12.2024 31.12.2023
USs USss

7,212 1,206,319,782 1,059,070,954
21.2 (834,588,050) (615,635,573)
21.3 (68,292,864) (80,672,319)
303,438,868 362,763,062
609,983,158 511,256,622
126,250,357 442,031,250
2,113,539 (1,476,651
8 738,347,054 951,811,221
8 {655,206,757) (748,409,908)
8 99,287,690 102,017,363
3 (133,532,763) (116,695,736)
8 48,895,224 188,722,940
75,489,947 73,495,103
272,982 (3,233,916)
{16,433,407) (15,675,068)
9 411,663,614 606,072,121
10 (39,275,590} (39,853,720)
372,388,024 566,218,401




AXA CHINA REGION INSURANCE COMPANY (BERMUDA) LIMITED

STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2024

Profit for the year

Items that may be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss

Change in fair value of financial instruments, including net movement in
cash flow hedge reserve

Net finance income/(expenses) from insurance contracts issued
Net finance (expenses)/income from reinsurance contracts held
Taxation related to these items

Items that may not be reclassified subsequently to Profit or Loss

Net realized capital gains on equity instruments, without recycling in
Profit or Loss

Change in fair value of equity instruments, without recycling in Profit or
Loss

Net finance expenses from insurance contracts related to equity
instruments, without recycling in Profit or Loss

Taxation related to these items

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR, NET OF
TAX

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR
ATTRIBUTABLE TO SHAREHOLDERS OF THE COMPANY

Comparative figures have been adjusted to conform with current year presentation.

Year ended Year ended
Notes 31.12.2024 31.12.2023
Us$ US$

372,388,024 566,218,401
(286,328,084) 323,454,627
420,682,537 (399,544,888)
(141,991,341) 194,392,716
775,072 5,269,355
88,070,715 (92,995,114)
329,063,052 278,395,432
(431,626,764) (201,103,460)
5,001,282 1,317,440
(16,263,531) 109,186,108
356,124,493 675,404,509




AXA CHINA REGION INSURANCE COMPANY (BERMUDA) LIMITED

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

AT 31 DECEMBER 2024
Notes At31.12.2024 At31.12.2023
USs$ Uss

ASSETS

INTANGIBLE ASSETS 12 323,142,548 339,686,377
PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 13 1,158,048 1,454,525
RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS 14 1,302,391 2,413,994
INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 15 846,293,743 390,146,204
INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES 16 104,351,178 103,298,055
INVESTMENTS IN SECURITIES 17 24,289,218,933 20,700,138,306
INSURANCE CONTRACT ASSETS 21.1 415,749,441 377,191,114
REINSURANCE CONTRACT ASSETS 21.1 5,051,396,568 5,058,602,111
LOANS 18 24,974 6,422,844
DEFERRED TAX ASSETS 19 23,369,178 18,382,848
OTHER ASSETS

Debtors and prepayments, unsecured 24 213,393,526 347,793,657
Amount due from an insurer subsidiary 24 72,090 4,840,960
Amount due from the immediate holding company 24 45,591,915 43,920,880
Amount due from the ultimate holding company 24 309 307
Amounts due from fellow subsidiaries 24 119,149 418,490
Amounts due from non-insurer subsidiaries 24 - 293,022
Derivative financial instruments 28 586,448,722 484,045,188
Pledged bank deposits 27,30 63,109,776 59,666,681
Fixed term bank deposits 27 46,515,407 51,757,455
Cash and cash equivalents 27 456,335,391 1,241,197,367

TOTAL ASSETS

32,467,593,287

29,231,670,385




AXA CHINA REGION INSURANCE COMPANY (BERMUDA) LIMITED

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION - continued

TOTAL LIABILITIES
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

AT 31 DECEMBER 2024
Notes At 31.12.2024 At31.12.2023
Us$ US$
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
CAPITAL AND RESERVES
Share capital 20 192,782,500 175,782,800
Reserves
Share premium 20 383,257,000 383,257,000
Fair value reserve 20 (1,541,854,587) (1,587,947,204)
Insurance finance reserve 20 759,420,251 823,663,196
Retained earnings 2,121,664,545 2,035,089,724
TOTAL EQUITY ATTRIBUTABLE TO SHAREHOLDERS OF
THE COMPANY 1,915,269,709 1,829,845,516
INSURANCE CONTRACT LIABILITIES 21.1 25,332,472,585 23,070,540,238
REINSURANCE CONTRACT LIABILITIES 211 29,272,179 70,716,461
INVESTMENT CONTRACT LIABILITIES 22 1,290,814,008 1,284,048,818
DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES 19 - -
OTHER LIABILITIES
Derivative financial instruments 28 1,225,742,187 1,033,400,849
Repurchase agreement and debt instruments liabilities 24 2,356,344,638 1,604,212,804
Creditors and accrued charges 24 242,917,063 301,844,800
Lease Payable 14 1,362,344 2,462,835
Amount due to an insurer subsidiary 24 57,390,439 -
Amounts due to fellow subsidiaries 24 8,716,622 20,757,485
Amount due to intermediate holding company 24 2,990,863 2,988,347
Amount due to an related company 24 297 -
Current tax payables 4,300,353 10,852,232

30,552,323,578

27,401,824,869

32,467,593,287

29,231,670,385

The financial statements on pages 7 to 103 were approved by the Board of Directors for issue on 2 8 APR 2025

and were signed on its behalf by:
%%4/\’ y /\ L ‘
" CcXH Thng
DIRECT{PR

7 Y.W. Wan
CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

-10 -
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AXA CHINA REGION INSURANCE COMPANY (BERMUDA) LIMITED

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2024

Notes

CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit before taxation

Adjustments for:

Interest income

Interest income on amount due from a non-insurer subsidiary
Net realised and unrealised gains on investments
Amortisation of intangible assets

Depreciation of plant and equipment

Depreciation of right-of-use assets

Interest expense on lease payable

Expected credit loss — Impairment loss

Exchange difference

Cash used in operations before working capital changes
Decrease in debtors and prepayments
Decrease/(increase) in amount due from a non-insurer subsidiary
Decrease in amount due from an insurer subsidiary
Increase in amount due from the immediate
holding company
(Increase)/decrease in amount due from the ultimate holding company
Decrease/(increase) in amounts due from fellow subsidiaries
Increase in pledged bank deposits
Increase in insurance and reinsurance contract
Increase/(decrease) in debt instruments liabilities
Decrease in creditors and accrued charges
Increase in amount due to an insurer subsidiary
Increase/(decrease) in amount due to an intermediate holding company
Decrease in amounts due to fellow subsidiaries
Increase in amount due to an related company
Increase/(decrease) in financial liabilities — investment contracts
Capitalisation of intangible assets

Net cash generated from operations

Profits tax paid
Overseas withholding tax paid

NET CASH GENERATED FRCM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

-12-

Year ended
31.12.2024
Us$

411,663,614

Year ended
31.12.2023
USS

606,072,121

(626,802,646) (511,256,622)
- (215,597)
(67,880,435) (258,392.390)
18,334,380 15,841,084
304,088 302,506
1,124,234 1,138,523
86,458 108,620
(2,113,539) 1,476,651
(1,824,078) 167,874
(267,107,924) (144,757,230)
166,111,052 249,387,411
293,022 (293,022)
4,768,870 66,184,077
(549,940) (148,085)
) 1
299,341 (61,341)
(3,443,095) (1,143,467)
2,027,753,712 2,350,611,806
752,131,834 (437,178,819)
(58,927,737) (323,352,274
57,390,439 .
2,516 (1,384)
(12,040,863) (8,396,503)
297 -
6,765,190 (145,034,730)
(13,232) (174,840)

2,673,433,480

{(26,729,770)
(18,193,969

1,605,641,600

(18,825,417)
(16,705,599)

2,628,509,741

1,570,110,584




L

— e e

AXA CHINA REGION INSURANCE COMPANY (BERMUDA)} LIMITED

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS - continued
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2024

Notes

CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Interest received

Decrease/(increase) in fixed term bank deposits
Increase in investment in subsidiaries

Proceeds from sale of investments in securities
Purchase of investments in securities

Purchase of derivative (net)

Decrease in loan 1o a fellow subsidiary
Decrease/(increase) in mortgage and other loans

NET CASH USED IN
INVESTING ACTIVITIES

CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Proceeds from issue of new shares

Payment of lease payable

Dividends paid 11

NET CASH USED IN FINANCING ACTIVITIES

NET {DECREASE)INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT
BEGINNING OF YEAR

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT
END OF YEAR 27

Year ended
31.12.2024
Uss

593,970,630
5,242,048

(455,046,086)
20,311,441,938

(23,790,900,290)
187,422,309
6,382,464
15,406

Year ended
31.12.2023
Uss

418,966,345
(13,789,231)
(10,064,076)

64,315,595,159

(66,174,060,753)
118,482,388

(29,094)

(3,141,471,581)

(1,344,899,262)

16,999,700
(1,199,836)
(287,700,000}

(271,900,136)

(784,861,976)

1,241,197,367

(1,214,826)
(127,600,000)
(128,814,826)

96,396,496

1,144,800,871

456,335,391

1,241,197,367

-13 -
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AXA CHINA REGION INSURANCE COMPANY (BERMUDA) LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2024

1.

GENERAL

The Company is an “Exempted Company” under Bermuda Companies Act 1981, which is incorporated under the laws
of the Islands of Bermuda with limited liability. Tts parent company is AXA China Region Limited, incorporated in
Bermuda and its ultimate controlling party is AXA, incorporated in France. The address of the registered office of the
Company is Victoria Place, 5th Floor, 31 Victoria Street, Hamilton HM 10, Bermuda and the principal place of business
of the Company is 20th Floor, Vertical Sq., 28 Heung Yip Road, Wong Chuk Hang, Hong Kong.

The principal activity of the Company is underwriting insurance business.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (*HKFRSs™)
(a) New and amended standards adopted by the Company

The Company has applied the following amendments for the first time for the annual reporting period commencing 1
January 2024:

*  Amendments to HKAS 1 - Presentation of Financial Statements: Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-current
and Non-current Liabilities with Covenants.

*  Amendments to HKAS 7 - Statement of Cash Flows and HKFRS 7 - Financial Instruments: Disclosures - Supplier
Finance Arrangements.

+  Amendments to HKFRS 16 - Leases: Lease Liability in a Sale and Leaseback

The application of the amendments had no material impact on the Company’s financial statements.
(b) New standards and interpretations not early adopted

Certain new accounting standards and interpretations have been published that are not mandatory for 31 December
2024 reporting periods and have not been early adopted by the Company. The Company’s assessment of these new
standards and interpretations is set out below.

Amendments to HKAS 21 - The Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates: Lack of Exchangeability

The amendments to HKAS 21- The Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates: Lack of Exchangeability, will be
effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 20235.

The amendments clarify when a currency is considered exchangeable into another currency, and how an entity estimates
a spot rate for currencies that lack exchangeability. The amendments introduce new disclosures to help financial
statement users assess the impact of using an estimated exchange rate. The Company has assessed the impact on the
Company’s Financial Statements and they are not expected to have a material impact.

Amendments to the Classification and Measurement Requirements for Financial Instruments in HKFRS 9 - Financial
Instruments and HKFRS 7 - Financial Instruments: Disclosures

Amendments to the Classification and Measurement Requirements for Financial Instruments in HKFRS 9 - Financial
Instruments and HKFRS 7 - Financial Instruments: Disclosures will be effective on 1 January 2026, with earlier
application permitted.

These amendments improve the requirements in HKFRS 9 and HKFRS 7 related to settling financial liabilities using
an electronic payment system as well as to assessing contractual cash flow characteristics of financial assets with
contingent features, including those with environmental, social and governance (ESG)-linked features. The
amendments also modify disclosure requirements relating to investments in equity instruments designated at fair value
through other comprehensive income and add disclosure requirements for financial instruments with contingent features
that do not relate directly to basic lending risks and costs. The assessment of their impact on the Company’s Financial
Statements is in progress.
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AXA CHINA REGION INSURANCE COMPANY (BERMUDA) LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2024

2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs™)
— continued

(b) New standards and interpretations not early adopted — continued

Annual improvemenis to HKFRS Accounting Standards — Volume 11

The Annual Improvements contain narrow amendments to HKFRSs and accompanying guidance as part of its regular
maintenance of the standards. The amendments will be effective on 1 January 2026,

The amendments to HKFRS 1 update the wordings in paragraph B6 regarding “qualifying criteria” and added cross-
reference to HKFRS 9 in paragraphs B35 and B6 to improve the consistency with the requirements of HKFR 9 and
understandability of HKFRS 1 related to hedge accounting,.

The amendments to HKFRS 7 remove an obsolete reference to paragraph 27A and updated the wordings in paragraph
B33 regarding “unobservable inputs” to be consistent with HKFRS 13. The amendments to the accompanying guidance
on implementing HKFRS 7 clarifying that the guidance does not necessarily illustrate all the requirements in the
reference paragraphs of HKFRS 7 regarding “fair value” consistent with other standards.

The amendments to HKFRS 9 address a conflict between HKFRS 9 and HKFRS 15 over the initial measurement of
trade receivables, and how a lessee accounts for the derecognition of a lease liability under paragraph 23 of HKFRS 9.

The amendments to HKFRS 10 clarify that the relationship described in paragraph B74 is just one example of a
circumstance in which judgement is required to determine whether a part is acting as a de facto agent.

The amendments to HKAS 7 replace the term “cost method” with at cost” in paragraph 37 as the definition of “cost
method” has already been removed in prior years.

The assessment of its impact on the Company’s Financial Statements is in progress.
HKFRS 18 - Presentation and Disclosure in Financial Statements

HKFRS 18 - Presentation and Disclosure in Financial Statements will be effective on 1 January 2027, with earlier
application permitted.

It is aimed at improving the quality and cross-industry comparability of financial reporting, notably by introducing
defined subtotals in the statement of profit or loss, adding new principles for aggregation and disaggregation of
information and requiring disclosures about management-defined performance measures, It will replace HKAS 1 -
Presentation of Financial Statements. The assessment of its impact on the Company’s Financial Statements is in
progress.

HKFRS 19 - Subsidiaries without public accountability: disclosure

HKFRS 19 - Subsidiaries without public accountability: disclosure will be effective for annual periods beginning on or
after 1 January 2027, with earlier application permitted. HKFRS 19 simplifies financial reporting by allowing eligible
subsidiaries to apply and hence assert compliance with HKFRSs with reduced disclosures. A subsidiary may elect to
apply HKFRS 19 in its consolidated, separate or individual financial statements provided that, at the reporting date: it
does not have public accountability and its parent produces consolidated financial statements that are available for
public use under HKFRSs. A subsidiary applying HKFRS 19 is required to clearly state in its explicit and unreserved
statement of compliance with HKFRSs that HKFRS 19 has been adopted. The assessment of its impact on the
Company’s Financial Statements is in progress.
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AXA CHINA REGION INSURANCE COMPANY (BERMUDA) LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2024

3.

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES INFORMATION

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with all applicable HKFRSs issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”} and the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda.

Basis of preparation

The Company has taken advantage of the exemption under HKFRS 10 from the requirement to prepare consolidated
financial statements as it and its subsidiaries are included in the consolidated financial statements of its parent, AXA
SA. AXA SA was incorporated in France. It has prepared the consolidated financial statements for public use in
accordance with IFRS. The address where these consolidated financial statements are obtainable is www.axa.comnl.

The material accounting policies adopted are as follows:

3.1 Insurance contracts, investment contracts with discretionary participation features (DPF) and Reinsurance
contracts held

Portfolios of insurance contracts and investment contracts with discretionary participation features (DPF) that are assets
and those that are liabilities, and portfolios of reinsurance contracts held that are assets and those that are liabilities, are
presented separately in the statement of financial position.

HKFRS 17 — Insurance Contracts applies to these contracts as detailed in this note,

Significant judgements and estimates are made by the Company in applying HKFRS 17, The judgements that have the
most significant effects on the amounts recognized in the financial statements relate to the classification of contracts,
their level of aggregation and their measurement.

In particular, the Company makes significant judgments regarding inputs, assumptions concerning the future and other
sources of uncertainty at the reporting date and uses estimation techniques to measure the insurance contracts. These
assumptions and estimates are reviewed on an ongoing basis, based on changes in facts and circumstances (including
market changes), which leads to adjustments in the measurement of contracts.

The Company uses assumptions to project future cash flows and ensures to design them to adequately reflect any
uncertainty underlying the cash flows. Non-market assumptions, based on latest best estimate assumptions (historical
data and expert judgment), include the following information: loss ratios, best estimate schedule of Japses, policyholder
behavior (e.g. dynamic lapses, election to guaranteed annuity), and management actions {e.g. discretionary benefits
distribution policy).

In respect of estimation techniques used to measure the non-Life insurance contracts, different actuarial projection
meodels are applied, based on (i) the portfolios® main features (in terms of risk drivers, underwriting and claims policies),
(ii) quality, relevance and consistency over time of available statistical data, (i) selection of relevant actuarial
assumptions and models, and (iv) ability to economically interpret and justify the projected range of results, both
quantitatively and qualitatively.

-16 -



e S O S = S SPO

AXA CHINA REGION INSURANCE COMPANY (BERMUDA) LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2024

3.

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES INFORMATION — continued

3.1 Insurance contracts, investment contracts with discretionary participation features (DPF) and Reinsurance
coniracts held - continued

In respect of estimation techniques used to measure the Life and Savings contracts, they are based on projections of the
key components of statutory financial statements, namely income or expenses that relate to policyholders, beneficiary
obligations and assets backing those liabilities.

The main assumptions that may generate material changes in the estimate of the future cash flows relate to (i} mortality,
morbidity, and longevity rates, (ii) policyholder behavior {due to lapse and surrender), and (iii) overhead expenses.

(a) Definition and classification

An insurance contract is a contract under which an issuer accepts significant insurance risk from a policyholder by agreeing
to compensate the policyholder if a specified uncertain fiture event (an “insured event*) adversely affects this policyholder.
The assessment whether a contract transfers a significant insurance risk considers all substantive rights and obligations
(including those arising from law or regulation) and is based on the use of judgement. In substance, insurance contract
services provided to a policyholder include the insurance coverage and may also include an investment-return service,
corresponding to the generation of an investment return for the policyholder having underwritten an insurance contract
without direct participation features, and an investment-related service corresponding to the management of underlying
items on behalf of the policyholder having underwritten an insurance contracts with direct participation features.

Insurance contracts with direct participation features

The Company classifies as insurance contract with direct participation features (i.e. direct participating contract) a contract
for which (i) the contractual terms specify that the policyholder participates in a share of a clearly identified pool of
underlying items, (i) the Company expects to pay to the policyholder an amount equal to a substantial share of the fair value
returns on the underlying items; and (iii) the Company expects a substantial proportion of any change in the amounts to be
paid to the policyholder to vary with the change in fair value of the underlying items. In addition to the transfer of significant
insurance risk to the issuer, a direct participating contract is therefore based on a substantially investment-related service
under which an entity promises an investment return on underlying items (the link must be enforceable), as well as on a
contractually specified participation. The underlying items determine some of the amounts payable to a policyholder and
can comprise any items (e.g. a reference portfolio of assets, technical items, the net assets of the entity, or a specified subset
of the net assets of the entity). The Company assesses whether the conditions above are met using its expectations at
inception of the contract and needs not reassess the conditions afterwards unless the contract is modified.

Insurance contracts without direct participation features

The Company classifies as insurance contract without direct participation features an insurance contract that is not an
insurance contract with direct participation features, namely:

e an insurance contract with indirect participation features (i.e. indirect participating contract) because the payment to
policyholders depends upon the return on underlying items, without meeting the criteria defined for insurance contracts
with direct participation features; or

¢ an insurance contract without any participation features (i.e. non-participating contract) as the payment to
policyholders does not depend upon the return on underlying items.

Investment contracts with discretionary participation features

The Company classifies as investment contract with discretionary participation features a financial instrument that provides
a particular investor with the contractual right to receive both an amount not subject to the discretion of the issuer (usually
the account value or the value of the unit-linked) and an additional amount subject to the discretion of the issuer, which is
expected to be a significant portion of the total contractual benefits. Even though these coniracts do not meet the definition
of an insurance contract (as they do not include a transfer of significant insurance risk), HKFRS 17 applies to those contracts
as the Company also issues insurance contracts. Following HKFRS 17 guidance, the investment contracts with discretionary
participation features issued by the Company have been assessed as meeting the criteria of insurance contracts with direct
participation features,

Furthermore, as described in Note 3.2, the Company holds investments contracts with no discretionary participation features
for which HKFRS 9 — Financial Instruments applies.

-17-



AXA CHINA REGION INSURANCE COMPANY (BERMUDA) LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2024

3. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES INFORMATION - continued

3.1 Insurance contracts, investment contracts with discretionary participation features (DPF) and Reinsurance
contracts held - continued

(b) Separating components from insurance and reinsurance contracts

The following components are separated from contracts: (i) distinet embedded derivatives, if they meet certain specified
criteria, (ii) distinct investment components, and (iii) distinet performance obligations to provide non-insurance goods and
services. These components are accounted for separately by the Company in accordance with the related standards.

After having performed this separation, the Company applies HKFRS 17 to all remaining components of the host insurance
contract. All these remaining components, including embedded derivatives, investment components and performance
obligations to provide non-insurance goods and services that have not been separated from the host contract, are considered
as a single insurance contract in substance.

{(c) Level of aggregation

The level of aggregation of contracts is the basis for measuring the contracts and their corresponding profitability. To define
the level of aggregation to be used, the Company applies the process hereafter:

= first, portfolios of contracts are identified, each of them only comprising contracts that are subject to similar risks
and managed together;,
= then, these portfolios are broken down by annual cohort (HKFRS 17 as issued by the HKICPA preventing contracts
issued more than one year apart from being included in the same group);
+ finally, a further split is performed depending on the level of profitability of contracts
*  Any contracts that are onerous on initial recognition;
*  any contracts that, on initial recognition, have no significant possibility of becoming onerous
subsequently; and
= any remaining contracts in the portfolio

(d) Initial recognition

The groups of insurance contracts issued are recognized from the earliest of (i) the beginning of the coverage period of the
group of contracts, which is the general case, (ii) the date when the first payment from a policyholder in the group becomes
due, and (iii) for a group of onerous contracts, the date when this group becomes onerous,

For investment contracts with discretionary participation features, the date of initial recognition is the date when the
Company becomes party to the contract,

(e) The General Measurement Model or “BBA”

HKFRS 17 requires applying by default the General Measurement Model of insurance contracts, called the “Building Block
Approach” (“BBA”™) as it is based on the following building blocks:

* the Fulfilment Cash Flows (“FCF™), which comprise:
»  probability-weighted estimates of future cash flows;
«  anadjustment to reflect the time value of money (i.e. discounting) and the financial risks associated with
those future cash flows; and
»  arisk adjustment for non-financial risk;
+ the Contractual Service Margin ("CSM"), which is calculated at inception as the difference between the premium
paid by the policyholder and the expected FCF, and corresponds to the present value of future expected profits.

The BBA mainly applies to the long-term health business, some life & savings contracts which do not qualify for the use of
Variable Fee Approach (“VFA”} and long term reinsurance treaties,
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AXA CHINA REGION INSURANCE COMPANY (BERMUDA) LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2024

3.

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES INFORMATION - continued

3.1 Insurance contracts, investment contracts with discretionary participation features (DPF) and Reinsurance
contracts held - continued

(e The General Measurement Model or “BBA” - continued
(i) Insurance acquisition cash flows (“IACF”)

The insurance acquisition cash flows arise from the costs of selling, underwriting and starting a group of insurance contracis.
When these 1ACF are incurred prior to the date of initial recognition of the group of insurance contracts, such IACF are
recognized as an asset, which is deducted from the carrying amounts of insurance contracts. The recoverability of assets for
IACF is assessed at the end of each reporting period, if facts and circumstances indicate that the asset may be impaired. If
an impairment loss is identified, the carrying amount of the asset for IACF is adjusted and the impairment loss is recognized
in the statement of profit or loss. When the group of insurance confract is recognized, the corresponding asset for IACF s
derecognized and included in the measurement of that group.

(ii) Estimates of future cash flows

The FCF notably include all the probability-weighted estimates of future cash flows within the boundary of each contract
already recognized. Cash flows are within the boundary of an insurance contract if they arise from substantive rights and
obligations that exist during the reporting period in which the Company can compel the policyholder to pay the premiums
or in which the Company has a substantive obligation to provide the policyholder with services. A substantive obligation to
provide services ends when:

+  the Company has the practical ability to reassess the risks of the particular policyholder and can set a price or
level of benefits that fully reflects those reassessed risks; or

+ the Company has the practical ability to reassess the risks of the portfolio that contains the contract and can set a
price or level of benefits that fully reflects the risks of that portfolio; and the pricing of the premiums for
coverage up to the reassessment date does not take into account risks that relate to periods after the reassessment
date.

The unbiased estimate of the expected future cash flows within the boundary of insurance contracts, including the cost of
options and guarantees embedded in the contract, to the extent that those options and guarantees are not separated from the
insurance contract, are based on a probability-weighted mean of the full range of possible outcomes to factor the uncertainty
about the timing and amounts of the cash flows, determined from the perspective of the Company, provided that the
estimates are consistent with observable market prices for market variables reflecting conditions existing at the measurement
date.

The cash flows attributable to the group of insurance contracts include premiums from the policyholders, claim payments
(including reported, incurred claims for events that have occurred but for which claims have not been reported and all the
future claims for which the Company has a substantive obligation net of recoveries from claims), profit sharing to
policyholders, as well as payments arising from the policyholders exercising options, directly attributable expenses and
commissions, costs related to investment activities performed for the benefit of policyholders (i.e. including investment-
return services and investment-related services),

The following cash flows are not included in the contracts boundary: investment returns as they are recognized, measured
and presented separately under other applicable HKFRSs, costs of investment activities performed for the benefit of
shareholders, payments or receipts that arise under reinsurance contracts held (as they are accounted for separately), those
that may arise from future insurance contracts, overheads that do not provide any economic benefits to fulfilling insurance
contracts, income tax payments and receipts the Company does not pay or receive in a fiduciary capacity, cash flows arising
from components separated from the insurance contracts and accounted for using other applicable HKFRSs.

If insurance premiums are first collected by an intermediary and then transferred to the Company at a later date, the premium

receivables from the intermediary are generally accounted for as future cash flows within the boundary of insurance
contracts included in the measurement of the corresponding group of insurance coniracts applying HKFRS 17.
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AXA CHINA REGION INSURANCE COMPANY (BERMUDA) LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2024

3.

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES INFORMATION - continued

3.1 Insurance contracts, investment contracts with discretionary participation features (DPF) and Reinsurance
contracts held - continued

(e The General Measurement Model or “BBA” - continued
(iii) Time value of money and financial risks related to the future cash flows

The Company applies discount rates to the estimates of the future cash flows to reflect the time value of money and financial
risks related to the future cash flows. The method of estimating the discount rates is detailed in Note 4.

{iv) Risk adjustment for non-financial risk ("RA")

The measurement of the risk adjustment reflects the compensation required by the Company for bearing the uncertainty
around the amount and timing of the future cash flows that arises from non-financial risk as the Company fulfils insurance
contracts. The changes in the risk adjustment for non-financial risk are presented in the insurance service result (i.e. they are
not disaggregated into insurance service result and insurance finance income and expenses).

The method of determining the RA is detailed in Note 4.
) CSM

For a group of insurance contracts, the CSM represents the unearned profit atiributable to the sharcholders. At inception,
the CSM is the amount that offsets the FCF, less the derecognition of assets for IACF (see above), or the value of the
Company’s rights in excess of the value of its obligations under the insurance contracts. On the other hand, the CSM cannot
be negative. Consequently, if the expected cash outflows exceed the expected cash inflows, the group of contracts is onerous
and the loss, which corresponds to the expected net cash outflow, is expensed immediately in the statement of profit or loss.

At the end of each subsequent reporting period, the Company remeasures the liability for remaining coverage ("LRC'",
which comprises the FCF related to future services and the CSM of the group of contracts at that date. Hence, the CSM is
adjusted at each subsequent reporting period for changes in expected future cash flows driven by changes in technical
assumptions {death, morbidity, longevity, surrenders, expenses, future premiums). Interest is also accreted on the CSM at
rates locked in at initial recognition of a group of contract (i.e. discount rate used at inception to determine the present value
of the estimated cash flows).

Moreover, the CSM is progressively recognized and included in insurance revenue in the statement of profit or loss over
the coverage period of insurance contracts (refer to Note 3.19). The portion of the CSM to be released as part of insurance
revenue for a reporting period, which reflects the performance of insurance contract services, is based on coverage units. In
practice, the Company:

*  identifies the total number of coverage units for each group of contracts, which is the quantity of services provided for
the insurance contracts belonging to the group over the expected coverage period;

+  allocates the CSM at the end of the reporting period (before having recognized any amounts in the statement of profit
or loss to reflect the services provided in the period) equally to each coverage unit provided in the current reporting
period and expected to be provided in the future; and

»  recognizes the amount of CSM allocated to the coverage units provided in the current reporting period in the statement
of profit or loss.

Given the variety of insurance contracts, the Company exercises its judgment to define coverage units, considering both the
level of coverage defined within the contract (e.g. a death benefit over a fixed term, the policyholders’ account value, or a
combination of guarantees) and the expected coverage duration of the contract.

However, this release of the CSM is not applicable if there are adverse changes in future cash flows greater than the
remaining CSM. In this case, the group of contracts becomes onerous, and the loss is immediately recognized in the
statement of profit or loss.

When a group of insurance contracts is onerous, on initial recognition or subsequently, the LRC includes a loss component
reflecting the loss recognized in the statement of profit or loss. As long as the group of contracts remains onerous, subsequent
changes in the amount of loss component are immediately allocated to the statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income,
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AXA CHINA REGION INSURANCE COMPANY (BERMUDA) LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2024

3.

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES INFORMATION - continued

31 Insurance contracts. investment contracts with discretionary participation features (DPF) and Reinsurance
contracts held - continued

(e The General Measurement Model or “BBA” - continued
{vi) Liabilities for incurred claims ("LIC")

After initial recognition of a group of insurance contracts, the carrying amount of the group at each reporting date is the sum
of two different components: the LRC, that relates to the remaining coverage (see above) and the LIC, which corresponds
to the FCF related to past services allocated to the group. '

The LIC reflects the Company’s obligation to investigate and pay valid claims for insured events that have already occurred,
including events that have occurred but for which claims have not been reported, and other incurred insurance expenses, as
well as to pay amounts relating to other insurance contract services already provided or any investment components or other
amounts that are not related to the provision of insurance contract services and that are not in the LRC.

{vii) Loss components

For contracts not measured under the premium allocation approach, the Company establishes a loss component of the
liability for remaining coverage for onerous groups of insurance contracts. The loss component determines the amounts of
fulfilment cash flows that are subsequently presented in profit of loss as reversals of losses on onerous contracts and are
excluded from insurance revenue when they occur. When the fulfilment cash flows are incurred, they are allocated between
the loss component and the liability for remaining coverage excluding the loss component on a systematic basis.

The systematic basis is determined by the proportion of the loss component relative to the total estimate of the present value
of the future cash outflows plus the risk adjustment for non-financial risk at the beginning of each year (or initial recognition
if a group of contracts is initially recognised in the year).

Changes in fulfilment cash flows relating to future services and changes in the amount of the Company’s share of the fair
value of the underlying items for direct participating contracts are allocated solely to the loss component. If the loss
component is reduced to zero, then any excess over the amount allocated to the loss component creates a new CSM for the
group of contracts.

(f) Premium Allocation Approach ("PAA"}

The Premium Allocation Approach is used for the Property and Casualty business and for some short-term Protection and
Health businesses.

This is a simplified model permitted for the measurement of the LRC provided that the measurement of the LRC does not
differ materially from the BBA or the coverage period is one year or less. On initial recognition of each group of contracts,
the carrying amount of the LRC is measured as the premiums received on initial recognition minus any insurance acquisition
cash flows allocated to the group at that date and adjusted for amounts arising from the derecognition of any assets or
liabilities previously recognised for cash flows related to the group. The Company has elected the accounting policy choice
to defer insurance acquisition cash flows through the LRC.

Subsequently, the carrying amount of the liability for remaining coverage is increased by any premiums received and the
amortisation of insurance acquisition cash flows recognised as expenses and decreased by the amount recognised as
insurance revenue for service provided and any additional insurance acquisition cash flows allocated after initial recognition,
On initial recognition of each group of contracts, the Company expects that the time gap between providing each part of the
coverage and the related premium due date is not significant. Accordingly, the Company has chosen not to adjust the LRC
to reflect the time value of money and the effect of financial risk.
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AXA CHINA REGION INSURANCE COMPANY (BERMUDA) LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2024

3.

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES INFORMATION - continued

3.1 Insurance contracts, investment contracts with discretionary participation features (DPF) and Reinsurance
contracts held — continued

() Premium Allocation Approach ("PAA") — continued

If at any time during the coverage period, facts and circumstances indicate that a group of contracts is onerous, then the
Company recognises a loss in profit or loss and increases the LRC to the extent that the current estimates of the fulfilment
cash flows that relate to remaining coverage exceed the carrying amount of the LRC as loss component. The fulfilment
cash flows are discounted (at current rates) if the LIC is also discounted.

The Company recognises the LIC of a group of insurance contracts for the amount of the fulfilment cash flows relating to
incurred claims. The Company does not apply discounting on LIC because the Company expects that the incurred claims
not yet paid will be settled within 1 year.

{2 Measurement with the VFA

The VFA applies to a large part of the Life and Savings businesses (both General Account and Unit-Linked contracts). This
measurement model is mandatory for insurance contracts with direct participation features and investment contracts with
discretionary participation features and aims at adjusting the CSM to reflect the variable nature of the fee. The adjustment
equals to the entity’s share of the change in fair value of the underlying items (explained below) and financial risks other
than those arising from the underlying items.

The VFA is derived from the BBA to the extent that it is also based on a building block approach. As such, the principles
described here above for the BBA also apply, meaning that the liabilities are also made of FCF and a CSM., At initial
recognition, there are no differences between the BBA and the VFA. However, the methodology is different for subsequent
measurement since the CSM under the VFA absorbs (excluding the Company’s share):

= the experience variance of the period generated by underlying items;
»  the consequences of changes in both technical and financial assumptions;
*  the effect of changes in financial risks not arising from underlying items (such as options and guarantees),

In order to allow an appropriate pattern of the CSM release in the statement of profit or loss over the coverage period,
consistently with the HKFRS 17 definition of the investment-related service, the number of coverage units is determined by
considering the expected return of underlying items resulting from Real World (“RW™} deterministic assumptions. The
estimation of the RW assumptions is detailed in Note 4.

The “risk mitigation” accounting option is applied to some group of contracts and allows to reduce or remove any accounting
mismatch arising from the mitigation of financial risks impacting the CSM by using (i) derivatives, (i) non-derivative
financial assets measured at fair value through profit and loss, held within shareholders® fund or (iii) reinsurance contracts.
Under this option, it is allowed (on a prospective basis from the transition date to HKFRS 17 as of January 1, 2022) not to
adjust the CSM but instead affect the statement of profit or loss for the changes in the FCF and the entity’s share in the fair
value return on the underlying items that the hedged items are intended to mitigate. This option is allowed only when the
Company has previously documented a risk-imanagement objective and strategy for mitigating financial risk. In particular,
an economic offset should exist between the insurance contracts and the hedging instruments, and credit risk shouid not
dominate the economic offset. If, and only if, these conditions cease to be subsequently met, the risk mitigation option is
stopped (with no restatement of previous adjustments).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2024

3.

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES INFORMATION - continued

3.1 Insurance contracts, investment contracts with discretionary participation features {DPF) and Reinsurance
coniracts held - continued

(h) Derecognition of insurance contracts

An insurance contract is derecognized from the group of contracts to which it belongs in case of extinguishment, transfer,

or a modification of its terms in a such a way that a new contract is recognized in a new group. The derecognition of

insurance contracts leads to eliminate their FCF and adjust the CSM of the group of contracts instead of generating a direct
and immediate effect in the statement of profit or loss, unless the group of coniracts becomes onerous or empty. Depending
on the cause of derecognition, the CSM of the group of contracts is adjusted:

*  in case of extinguishment of an insurance contract, by the same amount eliminated from the FCF;

*  in case of a portfolio transfer to a third party, by the difference between the amount eliminated from the FCF and the
premium charged by the third party;

*  in case of a modification of insurance contracts (requiring a derecognition followed by a recognition in a new group of
contracts), by the difference between the amount eliminated from the FCF and any additional premium charged to the
policyholder as a result of the modification. In practice, this means that the adjustments of CSM generated by the
modification is split between the initial group of contracts and the new one, depending on the hypothetical premium
that the entity would have charged had it entered into a contract with equivalent terms as the new contract at the date
of the contract modification.

Finally, if an insurance contract is derecognized because of its transfer to a third party or a modification, the remaining
amount previously recognized in Other Comprehensive Income (“OCI”) is reclassified in the statement of profit or loss
when the Building Block Approach applies but maintained in OCI when the VFA applies.

(i) Reinsurance contracts

The Company assumes and cedes reinsurance in the normal course of business. Assumed reinsurance refers to the
Company’s acceptance of certain insurance risks that other companies have underwritten leading to the recognition of
groups of reinsurance contracts issued. Ceded reinsurance refers to the transfer of insurance risks, along with the related
premiums, to other reinsurers who will assume the risks as the Company seeks to reduce the potential amount of loss arising
from claims events by reinsuring certain levels of risk underwritten, leading to the recognition of groups of reinsurance
contracts held.

Both groups of reinsurance contracts issued and groups of reinsurance contracts held are subject to the BBA or the PAA
described in the previous paragraphs provided that there is a transfer of significant insurance risk; in any case, they are not
eligible to the VFA as they are not insurance contracts with direct participation features. As the specificities of the treaties
can affect their classification, each reinsurance contract is subject to a detailed analysis by the Company in order to determine
the appropriate accounting treatment.

Whereas the recognition and measurement of reinsurance contracts issued is similar to insurance contracts issued, the
reinsurance contracts held have some specificities which are described hereafter,

Date of initial recognition

The recognition of groups of reinsurance contracts held depends on the type of coverage. When the reinsurance contract
held provides proportionate coverage, the date of recognition of the group corresponds to the date when any underlying
insurance contract is recognized by the Company. When the reinsurance contract held does not provide proportionate
coverage, the group of reinsurance contracts is recognized at the earliest of the beginning of the coverage period of the group
of underlying insurance contracts and the date when the entity recognizes an onerous group of underlying insurance
contracts.

Boundary of contract

For reinsurance contracts held, the cash flows are within the boundary of the reinsurance contract if the Company has a
substantive right to receive services from the reinsurer or a substantive obligation to pay premiums to the reinsurer.
Depending on the relationship between the contract boundary of the direct insurance contracts and that of the reinsurance
contracts held, in some cases, the reinsurance treaty might offer protection for underlying insurance contracts that the
Company has not issued yet. However, the carrying amount of a reinsurance contract held is nil before any cash flows
oceur or any service is received.
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3.

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES INFORMATION - continued

3.1 Insurance contracts. investment coniracts with discretionary participation features (DPF) and Reinsurance
contracts held — continued

(i) Reinsurance contracts - continued
Measurement

Similarly to underlying insurance contracts, PAA is used for short term reinsurance coverages with one year or less, while
long term coverages are measured with the BBA.

The measurement of reinsurance contracts held follows a mirroring principle of the underlying insurance contracts leading
to estimate the present value of the future cash flows of the reinsurance contract held using assumptions consistent with
those used for the underlying insurance contracts. Thus, the reinsurance contract asset is derived using the same assumptions
as those used by the Company for the underlying insurance contracts as these are the ones used to determine the expected
reinsurance recoveries. In practice, some reinsurance contracts held by the Company provide cover for underlying contracts
that are included in different groups.

However, using consistent assumptions does not imply the use of the same assumptions as those used for measuring the
underlying contracts if those assumptions are not valid for the reinsurance contract held. In practice, the use of the same
discount rate might not be appropriate, especially if the reinsurance contract is entered into during the coverage period of
the underlying contracts. In addition, the cash flows from the reinsurance contract held include an adjustment for the effect
of any risk of non-performance by the issuer of the reinsurance contract, including the effects of collateral and losses from
disputes.

At inception, the reinsurance coverage, in exchange of a reinsurance premium, is measured as:

»  thereinsurer’s share of the expected present value of the cash flows generated under the underlying insurance contracts,
including an adjustment to reflect the fact that the reinsurer might dispute coverage or fail to satisfy its obligations
under the contract (risk of non-performance / counterparty risk) ;

»  therisk adjustment for non-financial risk is the amount of risk being transferred by the Company to the reinsurer; and

+  typically a “net cost” ( a “net gain” can however occur in some cases ), which is in substance a negative Contractual
Service Margin (“CSM”) corresponding to the cost paid to the reinsurer, depending on the pricing of the reinsurance
contract held and assessed independently to the CSM arising from the underlying insurance contracts.

The mechanics of the measurement models are the satne for the underlying insurance contracts with the difference that the
concept of CSM is replaced by the concept of net cost / net gain. This net loss or net gain is deferred and released in profit
or loss throughout the coverage period, in line with the provision of reinsurance services. However, if the net cost of
purchasing reinsurance relates to past events, i.e. refrospective reinsurance contracts covering such as adverse development
covers for incurred claims, any net cost occurring at inception is immediately recognized in the statement of profit or loss.

Subsequently, at the end of each reporting period, the carrying amount of the net deferred cost or gain for reinsurance
contracts held is adjusted to reflect changes in estimates. However, if the Company recognizes losses in the statement of
profit or loss on underlying contracts because of adverse changes in estimates of fulfilment cash flows, the corresponding
changes in cash inflows for reinsurance contracts held are also recognized in profit or loss and therefore do not adjust the
net deferred loss or gain of the group of reinsurance contracts held. As a result, there is no net effect in the profit or loss for
the period to the extent that the change in the fulfilment cash flows of the underlying contracts is matched with a change in
the fulfilment cash flows on the reinsurance contracts held.

Reinsurance of onerous underlying insurance contracts

The Company adjusts the CSM of the group to which a reinsurance contract held belongs and as a result recognises
income when it recognises a loss on initial recognition of onerous underlying contracts, if the reinsurance contract held
is entered into before or at the same time as the onerous underlying contracts are recognised. The adjustment to the
CSM is determined by multiplying:

»  the amount of the loss that relates to the underlying contracts; and

= the percentage of claims on the underlying contracts the Company expects to recover from the reinsurance
contracts held.
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3.

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES INFORMATION - continued

3.1 Insurance confracts, investment contracts with discretionary participation features (DPF) and Reinsurance
contracts held — continued

@ Reinsurance contracts - continued
Measurement - continued

A loss recovery component is created or adjusted for the group of reinsurance contracts to depict the adjustment to the
CSM, which determines the amounts that are subsequently presented in profit or loss as reversals of recoveries of losses
from the reinsurance contracts and are excluded from the allocation of reinsurance premium paid.

) Transiticn methods

The transition to HKFRS 17 involved determining the methodology to be used for measuring the insurance contracts
in force at the transition date, which is the beginning of the annual reporting period immediately preceding the date of
initial application, namely 1 January 2022.

Theoretically, the transition from HKFRS 4 to HKFRS 17 requires applying the new standard fully retrospectively, as
if it was applied from the inception of insurance contracts in force. However, if the application of this full retrospective
approach (“FRA™) is impracticable, the two following options are possible:

»  either the modified retrospective approach (“MRA™), which consists in applying certain modifications of general
requirements, to the extent that the full retrospective application is impracticable, but still with the objective to achieve
the outcome as close as possible to the retrospective application, based on reasonable and supportable information
available without undue cost and effort; or

+ the fair value approach (“FVA™), which consists in repricing the contracts in the light of actuarial and financial
parameters seen at the transition date by calculating the CSM as the positive difference between (i) the fair value of
liabilities determined in accordance with HKFRS 13 — Fair Value Measurement, corresponding to the price that would
be required by an external party to acquire the labilities, and (ii} the fulfilment cash flows of insurance contracts.

In practice, the Company has applied the FRA only to the liabilities for remaining coverage (“LRC”) of insurance
contracts measured using the Premium Allocation Approach (“PAA”} and to the liabilities for incurred claims (“LIC”)
occurred since 2016.

For other groups of insurance contracts, different factors (such as the impossibility of running models since the
inception of the contracts, the availability of yield curves, the lack of historical data) have made the application of the
FRA impracticable. For these groups of contracts, the Company has applied the MRA or the FVA, namely:

»  for individual health contracts, the MRA was used, which mainly consisted in calculating an approximate CSM by
reusing past information coming from European Embedded Value (“EEV™) or Solvency II, and the analyses of
movements leading to get results close to those that would have been obtained using a FRA, whereas the FVA being
applied only on a more limited basis;

+  for LIC occurred before 2016 related to Property & Casualty contracts, in the absence of reasonable and supportable
information (under HKFRS 4, claims reserves were generally not discounted and determining the correct locked-in
discount yield curves was not possible without hindsight for periods before the adoption of Solvency II}, the FVA was
applied with the option taken to set the OCI to zero on transition (i.e. discounting the liabilities with the transition yield
curve instead of an historical accident year yield curve);

»  for the remaining contracts, the FVA was used.
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3.

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES INFORMATION - continued

32 Investment contracts without DPF

Liabilities arising from these contracts are financial liabilities within the scope of HKFRS 9. They mainly include Unit-
Linked contracts that do not meet the definition of insurance contracts or investment contracts with discretionary
participation features. For these Unit-Linked contracts, the liabilities are measured at current unit value, i.e. on the basis of
the fair value of the financial investments backing those contracts at the end of the reporting period.

In accordance with HKFRS 9, these contracts are accounted for using “deposit accounting”. Costs corresponding to
incremental costs of obtaining a contract or costs that are directly related to fulfilling a contract are expected to be recoverad
and can be capitalized as Deferred Crigination Costs (“DOC”) and subsequently amortised. Fees received at inception to
cover future services are recognized as liabilities and accounted for in the statement of profit or loss based on the same
amortization pattern as the one used for DOC,

33 Financial instruments

{(a) Classification

Financial assets are classified in the three following measurement categories, based on the business model in which those
financial assets are held and on the characteristics of their contractual cash flows:

. a financial asset is measured at amortized cost if both (i) the asset is held within a business model whose objective is
achieved by collecting contractual cash flows from the assets held, and (ii) the contractual terms of the financial asset
give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount
outstanding (“SPPI”);

. if both (i) the asset is held within 4 business model whose objective is achieved by collecting contractual cash flows
and selling financial assets (which is the major business model for the Company’s investments in debt instruments),
and (ii) the contractual terms of cash flows are SPPI, the financial asset is measured at fair value through other
comprehensive income (“FVOCI”) and realized gains or losses are recycled through profit or loss upon sale;

+  assets not fitting either of these categories are measured at fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL”)

Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their initial recognition, unless the Company changes its business
model for managing financial assets in which case all affected financial assets are reclassified on the first day of the
first reporting period following the change in the business model.

In addition to the general classification guidance above, the Company uses the following classification options:

- optional FVOCI designation for investments in equity instruments (other than those held for trading), also referred to
as “FVOCI without recycling”. The Company applies this optional designation for most of equity securities held except
those backing coniracts where the financial risk is borne by policyholders, measured at a FVTPL basis;

+  optional FVTPL designation (Fair Value Option for financial assets). The Company applies this option for some
financial assets that otherwise meet the requirements to be measured at amortized cost or at FVOCI, if doing so
eliminates or significantly reduces an accounting mismatch in profit or loss, for example, for some loans backing
insurance contracts measured using the VFA.
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3.

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES INFORMATION - continued

3.3 Financial instruments - continued

(b) Initial recognition and measurement

Regular-way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on trade-date - the date on which the Company
commits to purchase or sell the asset.

Financial assets are initially recognised at fair value plus transaction costs for all financial assets not carried at fair value
through profit or loss. Financial assets carried at fair value through profit or loss are initially recognised at fair value,
and transaction costs are expensed in the statement of profit or loss.

(c} Subsequent measurement
6] Debt instruments measured at amortised cost

After initial measurement, debt instruments are measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest method, less
allowance for impainment. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition
and fee or costs that are an integral part of the effective interest rate.

(ii) Debt instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income

FVOCI debt instruments are subsequently measured at fair value with gains and losses arising due to changes in fair
value recognised in OCI. Interest income calculated using the effective interest method, foreign exchange gains and
losses and impairment are recognised in profit or loss. On derecognition, cumulative gains or losses previously
recognised in QCI are reclassified from OCI to profit or loss.

({ii) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at FVTPL are recorded in the statement of financial position at fair value. Net gains and losses, including
any interest or dividend income and foreign exchange gains and losses, are recognised in profit or loss, unless they arise
from derivatives designated as hedging instruments in net investment hedges.

{iv) Equity investments at fair value through other comprehensive income

Equity investments at fair value through other comprehensive income are measured at fair value. Dividends are recognised
as income in profit or loss when the Company’s right to receive payment is established unless they clearly represent a
recovery of part of the cost of the investment, Other net gains and losses are recognised in OCI and are never reclassified to
profit or loss. Cumulative gains and losses recognised in QOCI are transferred to retained earnings on disposal of an
investment.
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MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES INFORMATION - continued

3.3 Financial instruments - continued

(d) Impairment
The impairment applies to financial assets measured at amortised cost and debt securities measured at FVOCI.
The Company measures ECL allowances at an amount equal to:

J 12-month ECL resulting from default events that are possible within the 12 months after the reporting date and
recognized for financial instruments for which the credit risk has not increased significantly since initial recognition
(it is also assumed that the credit risk has not increased significantly since initial recognition if the financial
instrument has low credit risk at the reporting date); or

. lifetime ECL resulting from all possible default events over the expected life of the financial instrument and
calculated for financial instruments for which there have been significant increases in credit risk since initial
recognition, as well as for financial instruments for which a credit event has occurred since their initial recognition.

ECL for trade receivables and lease receivables that are within the scope of HKFRS 9, typically outstanding for a relatively
short period of time, are always measured at an amount equal to lifetime ECL.

Financial instruments for which 12-month ECL are recognized referred to as “Stage [” financial instruments, Financial
instruments for which lifetime ECL are recognized but for which no credit event has occurred are referred to as “Stage 2”
financial instruments. Finally, financial instruments for which a credit event has occurred since their initial recognition are
referred to as credit-impaired, or “Stage 3” financial instruments.

To perform the impairment stage allocation, at each reporting date, The Company assesses, for each financial instrument
within the scope of the ECL calculation:

«  whether the financial instrument has low credit risk;

+  whether the credit risk on the financial instrument has increased significantly since initial recognition;

»  whether the credit risk on the financial instrument previously classified in Stage 2 has improved since the previous
reporting date; and

»  whether a credit event (default) has occurred,

The approach used by the Company to perform the impairment stage allocation includes the following components:

+ the quantitative assessment designed to detect, for all financial assets within the scope of the ECL calculation,
significant increases and decreases in credit risk. This quantitative assessment is based on the Company’s HKIFRS
9 rating which captures all relevant information, including forward-looking information, required to identify
significant changes in credit risk since initial recognition based on fact and circumstances specific to the financial
asset; and

+ the qualitative assessment, based on expert judgment, performed to confirm transfers between Stage 1 and Stages
2 or 3 for material exposures within the scope derived from the quantitative assessment.

ECL is defined at each financial reporting date based on the key inputs which are the probability of the default, the magnitude
of the potential credit loss after any potential recovery and the exposure to the risk of default determined as the financial
instrument’s gross carrying amount plus the accrued interests at the closing date.

The amount of ECL is updated at each reporting date to reflect changes in credit risk on the concerned financial instruments.
Any increase in credit risk gives rise to an additional ECL allowance. Previously recognized ECL allowances are reversed
when the corresponding credit risk improves, ECL allowances and reversals are recognized in profit or loss and, as a
counterpart, affect:

+  for the financial instruments measured at amortized cost, their carrying value in the statement of financial position;

+  for the financial instruments measured at FVOCI, the amount of unrealized gains or losses on those instruments
accumulated in the OCL
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3. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES INFORMATION - continued
33 Financial instruments - continued
(d) Impainment - continued
The following tables explain the changes in the ECL allowances for FVOCI debts instruments.
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
Gross Related Gross Gross Related
Gross catrying | Related ECL | carrying ECL camrying Related ECL carrying ECL
amount allowance amount allowance amount allowance amount allowance
US$'000 USs 600 US$000 US$ 000 US$000 US$000 US$’000 US$000
Balance as at
01.01.2023 11,497,320 (3,236) 8,754 (672) 27,890 {24,221) 11,533,964 (28,129)
Transfer to Stage 2 (2,94%) 272 2,948 272) - - - -
Transfer to Stage 3 (3,748) 288 (1,554 103 5,302 391 - -
Originated or
purchased 54,851,327 (1,581) 1,814 (341) 1,396 9) 54,854,537 (1,931)
Matured or sold (52,383,612) 1,192 | (14.993) 327 (54,204) 16,381 (52,454,809) 17,900
Remeasurements {47 .264) {728) 9,525 (23) 34,082 1,194 (3,657) 443
Exchange (5,324) 1 {4) - (13 11 (5,341) 12
Balance as at
31.12.2023 13,903,751 (3,792) 6,490 (878) 14,453 {7.035) 13,924,694 {11,705)
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
Gross Related Gross Gross Related
Gross carrying | Related ECL | carrying ECL carrying Related ECL carrying ECL
amount allowance amount allowance amount allowance amount allowance
US$°000 Us$'000 US$'000 US$000 Uss$ 000 US$ 000 Uss°c00 US$ 000
Balance as at
01.01.2024 13,903,751 (3,792) 6,490 {378) 14,453 {7,035) 13,924,694 {11,705)
Transfer to Stage 2 (11,340) 284 11,340 {284) - - - -
Transfer to Stage 3 (200) - - - 200 - - -
Originated or
purchased 2,098,155 378 1,303 59 1,050 - 2,100,508 437
Matured or sold {311,957) 574 2,372 486 (1,418) 351 (315,747 1,411
Remeasurements (53,985) (1,047 {2,336) 104 (1,580) 2619 (57,901 1,676
Exchange 72,748 {20) 34 {4 74 {36) 72,856 (60)
Balance as at
31,12,2024 15,697,172 (3,623) 14,439 317 12,779 (4,101) 15,724,410 (8,241)
(e Derecognition, contract modification

The Company derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial assets expire,
or it transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash flows in a transaction in which substantially all of the risks and
rewards of ownership of the financial asset are transferred or in which the Company neither transfers nor retains substantially
all of the risks and rewards of ownership and it does not retain control of the financial asset.

In transactions in which the Company neither retains nor transfers substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership of
a financial asset and it retains control over the asset, the Company continues to recognise the asset to the extent of its
continuing involvement, determined by the extent to which it is exposed to changes in the value of the transferred asset.

34

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities are classified into two categories: financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss and other
financial liabilities.
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3.

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES INFORMATION - continued

34 Financial liabilities - continued

(i) Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
A financial liability is typically designated as at fair value through profit or loss if it meets the following criteria;

»  The designation eliminates or significantly reduces a measurement or recognition inconsistency (sometimes referred to
as an “accounting mismatch™) that would otherwise arise from measuring the financial liabilities or recognising the
gains and losses on them on different bases; or

+  Part of a group of financial liabilities that are managed and evaluated on a fair value basis in accordance with a
documented risk management or investment strategy and reported to key management personnel on that basis; or

+  Financial instruments, such as debt securities issued, containing one or more embedded derivatives significantly modify
the cash flows.

Financial liabilities designated at fair value through profit or loss are carried at fair value and any gains and losses from
changes in fair value are recognised as net change in investment contract liabilities in the statement of profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when they are extinguished - that is, when the obligation is discharged, cancelled or
expires.

(ii) Other financial liabilities
Other financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value net of transaction costs incurred and subsequently stated at
amortised cost using the effective interest method. Interest expense calculated using the effective interest method is

recognised as other finance costs in the statement of profit or loss,

3.5 Derivative instruments

Derivatives are initially recognized at fair value at purchase date and are subsequently re-measured at their fair value at the
reporting date. Unrealized gains and losses are recognized in the statement of profit or loss unless they relate to a qualifying
hedge relationship as described below,

In the statement of financial position, derivatives are presented in separate line items, as either an asset or a liability
depending upon the fair value position at the reporting date, with no offsetting, regardless of whether these derivatives meet
the criteria for hedge accounting.

Under hedge accounting, the Company formally documents, at inception of a designated hedging relationship, its risk
management objectives and strategy for undertaking the hedge. This documentation includes (i) the identification of the
hedged item and of the hedging instrument, (ii} the nature of the risk being hedged, (iii} the economic relationship between
the hedged item and the hedging instrument, including whether the changes in the value of the hedged item and the hedging
instrument are expected to offset each other, (iv) and how the assessment of whether the hedging relationship meets the
hedge effectiveness requirements will be performed, including its analysis of the sources of hedge ineffectiveness. The
hedging relationship documentation is updated on an ongoing basis.

The Company designates certain derivatives as either; (i) hedging of highly probable expected future transactions (cash flow

hedge}, or (ii) hedging of the fair value of recognized assets or liabilities or of a firm commitment (fair value hedge), or (jii)
hedging of net investments in foreign operations.
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MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES INFORMATION - continued

35 Derivative instruments - continued

(i) Cash flow hedge

A separate component of equity, referred to as cash flow hedge reserve, is adjusted through other comprehensive income
(“OCI”) for the lower of the following amounts:

*  gain or loss on the hedging instrument curnulated since inception of the hedge, and
+  change in fair value of the hedged itermn cumulated since inception of the hedge (i.e. the present value of the cumulative
change in the hedged expected future cash flows).

If the cumulative gain or loss on the hedging instrument exceeds the change in fair value of the hedged item (sometimes
referred to as an ‘over-hedge’), the related ineffectiveness is recognized in profit or loss. If the cumulative gain or loss on
the hedging instrument is lower than the change in fair value the hedged item (sometimes referred to as an ‘under-hedge”),
no ineffectiveness appears.

Cumulative gain or loss in cash flow hedges reserve (included under fair value reserve) is recycled in the statement of profit
or loss when the hedged underlying item impacts the profit or loss for the period (for example when the hedged future
transaction is recognized). When a hedging instrument reaches its maturity date or is sold, or when a hedge no longer
qualifies for hedge accounting, the cumulative gains or losses in shareholders’ equity are released in profit or loss when the
initially hedged future transaction ultimately impacts the statement of profit or loss, If the hedged future cash flows are no
longer expected to oceur, the cumulative gains or losses are immediately reclassified from shareholders’ equity to profit or
loss.

(i)  Fair value hedge

Changes in the fair value of derivatives designated and qualifying as hedging instruments in fair value hedges of equity
instruments designated at FVOCI are recorded in QCI, without recycling into profit or loss, together with changes in fair
value of the hedged equity instrument,

Changes in the fair value of derivatives designated and qualifying as hedging instruments in fair value hedges of other
financial instruments are recorded in the statement of profit or loss, together with any changes in the fair value of the hedged
asset or liability. Therefore, the gain or loss relating to any ineffective portion is directly recognized in the statement of profit
or loss.

(iii) Net investment hedge

The accounting of net investments in foreign operations hedge is similar to the accounting of cash flow hedge. Any
gain or loss on the hedging instrument relating to the effective portion of the hedge is recognized in other comprehensive
income; the gain or loss relating to the ineffective portion is recognized in the statement of profit or loss. Cumulative
gains and losses in reserve impact the statement of profit or loss only on disposal of the foreign operations.

(iv) Derivatives not qualifying for hedge accounting

Most of the derivatives used by the Company are purchased with a view to hedge, or for example to use such instruments
as an alternative to gain exposure to certain asset classes through “synthetic positions”. However, given HKFRS 9
constraints, only qualifying hedges are eligible to hedge accounting provisions described above. Changes in the fair
value of derivative instruments that do not qualify for hedge accounting are recognized in the statement of profit or
loss.

The Company holds financial investments that also include embedded derivatives. A derivative embedded in a contract
where the host is a financial agset in the scope of HKFRS 9 is not separated. Instead, the hybrid financial instrument as
a whole is assessed for classification applying the guidance described in paragraph 3.3. Conversely, if the host coniract
is a financial liability within the scope of HKFRS 9 and is not measured at FVTPL, the embedded derivative is separated
from the host contract to the extent that the impact is deemed material, unless the economic characteristics and risks of
both the embedded derivative and the host contract are closely related. In this case, the host contract is accounted for
as a financial liability within the scope of HKFRS 9, and the separated derivative is accounted for at FVTPL.
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3.6 Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured entity) over which the Company has control. The Company controls
an entity when the Company is exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns from its involvement with the entity and
has the ability to affect those returns through its power over the entity.

Investments in subsidiaries other than unit trusts are stated at cost as reduced by any identified impairment loss.
Investments in unit trusts are classified as financial assets and are stated at fair value through profit or loss.

Income from the subsidiaries other than unit trusts is accounted for by the Company on the basis of dividends received
or receivable during the year. Dividends are receivable when the right to receive has been established.

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries is required vpon receiving dividends from these investments if
the dividend exceeds the total comprehensive income of the subsidiary in the period the dividend is declared or if the
carrying amount of the investment in the financial statements exceeds the net asset value of the investee’s financial
staternents.

3.7 Leases

Liabilities arising from a lease are initially measured on a present value basis. Lease liabilities include the net present
value of the following lease payments:

» fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments), less any lease incentives receivable

+  variable lease payment that are based on an index or a rate, iitially measured using the index or rate as at the
commencement date

*  amounts expected to be payable by the Company under residual value guarantees

+  the exercise price of a purchase option if the Company is reasonably certain to exercise that option, and

*  payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the Company exercising that eption.

Lease payments to be made under reasonably certain extension options are also included in the measurement of the liability.

The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease. If that rate cannot be readily determined,
which is generally the case for leases in the Company, the lessee’s incremental borrowing rate is used, being the rate
that the individual lessee would have to pay to borrow the funds necessary to obtain an asset of similar value to the
right-of-use asset in a similar economic environment with similar terms, security and conditions.

To determine the incremental borrowing rate, the Company:

= where possible, uses recent third-party financing received by the individual lessee as a starting point, adjusted to reflect
changes in financing conditions since third party financing was received

*  uses a build-up approach that starts with a risk-free interest rate adjusted for credit risk for leases held by the Company,
which does not have recent third party financing, and

*  makes adjustments specific to the lease, eg term, country, currency and security.

Lease payments are allocated between principal and finance cost. The finance cost is charged to profit or loss over the
lease period so as to produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability for each period.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost comprising the following:

«  the amount of the initial measurement of lease liability

= any lease payments made at or before the commencement date less any lease incentives received
= any initial direct costs, and

»  restoration costs.

Right-of-use assets are generally depreciated over the shorter of the asset's useful life and the lease term on a straight-
line basis. If the Company is reasonably certain to exercise a purchase option, the right-of-use asset is depreciated over
the underlying asset’s useful life,

Payments associated with short-term leases and all leases of low-value assets are recognised on a straight-line basis as
an expense in profit or loss. Short-term leases are leases with a lease term of 12 months or less.
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MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES INFORMATION - continued
3.8 Associates

Associates are all entities over which the Company has significant influence but no control, generally accompanying a
shareholding of between 20% and 50% of the voting rights.

In the Company’s staternent of financial position, investments in associates other than unit trusts are stated at cost, as
reduced by any identified impairment loss. Results of the associates are accounted for by the Company on the basis of
dividends received or receivable during the vear.

Investments in unit trusts are classified as financial assets and are stated at fair value through profit or loss.

3.9 Plant and equipment

Plant and equipment are stated at historical cost less depreciation. Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly
attributable to the acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only
when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Company and the cost of the
itern can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced part is derecognised. All other repairs and
maintenance are charged to the statement of profit or loss during the financial period in which they are incurred.

Depreciation is provided to write off the cost of items of plant and equipment over their estimated useful lives to the
Company after taking into account of their estimated residual value, using the straight-line method, at the following
annual rates;

Leasehold improvements 10-20%
Furniture, fixtures and equipment  10-20%

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting period.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is
greater than its estimated recoverable amount.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing the proceeds with the cairying amount and are recognised
in the statement of profit or loss.

3.10 Impairment of non-financial assets

Assets are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount
may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds
its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs of disposal and value in
use. For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are separately
identifiable cash flows (cash-generating units). Non-financial assets other than goodwill that suffered an impairment
are reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment at each reporting date.

3.11 Provisions
Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events; it
is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation; and the amount has been reliably

estimated. Provisions are not recognised for future operating losses.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the expenditures expected to be required to settle the obligation using a
pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the obligation.

-33-



AXA CHINA REGION INSURANCE COMPANY (BERMUDA) LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2024

3.

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES INFORMATION - continued

312 Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholders is recognised as a liability in the Company’s financial statements in
the period in which the dividends are declared by the Board of Directors of the Company.

3.13 Current and deferred income tax

The tax expense for the period comprises current and deferred tax. Tax is recognised in profit or loss, except to the
extent that it relates to items recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this case the tax is also
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the end of
the reporting period in the countries where the Company operates and generates taxable income. Management
periodically evaluates positions taken in tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulation is
subject to interpretation. It establishes provisions where appropriate on the basis of amounts expected to be paid to the
tax authorities.

Deferred income tax is recognised, using the lability method, on temporary differences arising between the tax bases
of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the financial statements. However, the deferred income tax is not
accounted for if it arises from initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction other than a business combination
that at the time of the transaction affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss, Deferred income tax is determined
using tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period and are
expected to apply when the related deferred income tax asset is realised or the deferred income tax liability is settled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised only to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will be available
against which the temporary differences can be utilised.

Deferred income tax is provided on temporary differences arising on investments in subsidiaries and associates, except
for deferred income tax liability where the timing of the reversal of the temporary difference is controlled by the group
and it is probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and when the deferred income taxes assets and liabilities relate to income taxes levied by
the same taxation authority on either the taxable entity or different taxable entities where there is an intention to settle
the balances on a net basis.

3.14 Foreign currency translation

() Functional and presentation currency

The financial statements is presented in United States dollars, which is the same as the functional currency of the Company.
(b} Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions that are transactions denominated, or that require settlement, in a foreign currency are
translated into the functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange
gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions and from the translation of year-end exchange rates of
monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are recognised in the statement of profit or loss.
Monetary items denominated in foreign currency are translated with the closing rate as at the reporting date. Non-monetary
items measured at historical cost denominated in a foreign currency are translated with the exchange rate as at the date of
initial recognition; non-monetary items in a foreign currency that are measured at fair value are translated using the exchange

rates at the date when the fair value was determined.

Translation differences on financial assets and liabilities held at FVTPL are reported as part of the fair value gain or loss.
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3.

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES INFORMATION - continued

3.15 Employee benefits

(a) Pension obligations

The Company operates a number of defined contribution plans. The schemes are generally funded through payments
to separate trustee-administered funds. A defined contribution plan is a pension plan under which the Company pays
fixed contributions into a separate entity. The Company has no legal or constructive obligations to pay further
contributions if the fund does not hold sufficient assets to pay all employees the benefits relating to employee service
in the current and prior periods. The contributions are recognised as employee benefit expense when they are due.
Prepaid contributions are recognised as an asset to the extent that a cash refund or a reduction in the future payments is
available.

(b) Bonus plans

The Company recognises a liability and an expense for bonuses, based on a formula that takes into consideration the
profit attributable to the Company’s shareholders after certain adjustments. The Company recognises a provision where
contractually obliged or where there is a past practice that has created a constructive obligation.

(c) Share-based payments

AXA operates a number of equity-settled, share-based compensation plans, under which the Company receives services
from directors and employees as consideration for equity instruments of AXA. The fair value of the directors and
employeses services received in exchange for the grant of the equity instruments is recognised as an expense being
absorbed by an intermediate holding company. The total amount to be recognised as an expense in the intermediate
holding company’s statement of profit or loss is determined by reference to the fair value of the options granted:

* including any market performance conditions;
» excluding the impact of any service and non-market performance vesting conditions; and
* including the impact of any non-vesting conditions.

3.16 Cash and cash equivalents

In the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents includes cash in hand, deposits held at call with banks, and
other short-term highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less.

3.17 Share capital
Ordinary shares are classified as equity

Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares or options are shown in equity as a deduction, net of
tax, from the proceeds.

3.18 Fair value of financial instruments

Financial instruments traded in other than active markets or that do not have quoted prices have less observability and
are measured at fair value using valuation models or other pricing techniques that require more judgment, An active
market is one in which transactions for the asset or liability being valued occur with sufficient frequency and volume
to provide pricing information on an ongoing basis. An other than active market is one in which there are few
transactions, the prices are not current, price quotations vary substantially either over time or among market makers, or
in which little information is released publicly for the asset or liability being valued. Pricing observability is affected
by a number of factors, including the type of financial instrument, whether the financial instrument is new to the market
and not yet established, the characteristics specific to the transaction and general market conditions, The Company uses
its judgement to select a variety of methods and make assumptions that are mainly based on market conditions existing
at the end of each reporting period.

Unobservable inputs are only used to measure fair value to the extent that relevant observable inputs are not available,
allowing for circumstances in which there is little, if any, market activity for the asset or liability.
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3.

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES INFORMATION - continued

3.19 Insurance revenue

The insurance revenue reflects the insurance contract services provided by the Company over the period, which is
derived from the reduction in the LRC during the reporting period, subject to corrections (adjustment of premiums, loss
components) and excluding investment components (i.e. amounts to be paid to a policyholder even if an insured event
does not occur),

The way these changes are reflected in the insurance revenue differs by measurement model.

For the contracts measured under the PAA, the insurance revenue corresponds to the amount of expected insurance
coverage during the period (or passage of time if not significantly different), excluding any investment components.

For the contracts measured under the BBA and the VFA, the insurance revenue corresponds to the release of the LRC,
depending on the quantity of provided services, and an allocation of insurance acquisition cash flows.

In substance, the amounts related to the provision of insurance contract services include:

» the expected claims, including expenses other than insurance acquisition cash flows, but excluding those not
contributing to the fulfilment of insurance contracts (i.e. non-attributable expenses);

» the release of the risk adjustment for non-financial risk;

» the allocation of the CSM to the period.

The allocation of insurance acquisition cash flows represents the portion of premiums that corresponds to the recovering
of those cash flows to each reporting period in a systematic way based on the passage of time, the same amount being
recognized as insurance service expenses. This mechanism enables to add back the part of the premium corresponding
to the coverage of insurance acquisition cash flows. This means that insurance acquisition cash flows are not recognized
in the statement of profit or loss when the acquisition cash flows occur but when the CSM is released.

3.20 Insurance service expenses

Insurance service expenses arising from groups of contracts issued by the Company are recognized in the statement of
profit or loss as they are incurred, excluding amounts allocated to refunds of premiums and payment of policy loans.
Symmetrically to insurance revenue, the payments relating to investment components are excluded from insurance
service expenses.

All insurance service expenses correspond to actual cash outflows within the boundary of contracts identified when
projecting and calculating the present value of future cash flows. These cash flows are:

+ those that relate directly to the fulfilment of insurance contract; and

* those over which the Company has discretion over the amount or timing. In this respect, the change in discretionary
cash flows is determined at inception of the contract (e.g. by identifying the minimum guarantees and defining its
profit-sharing policy).

321 Net expenses from reinsurance contracts held

In the statement of profit or loss, net expenses from reinsurance contracts held (net income in some cases) are presented
separately from the insurance service expenses and included in a single aggregate, corresponding to the net between
reinsurance service expenses and amounts recovered from the reinsurers.
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3.

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES INFORMATION - continued

322 Net finance income or expenses from insurance and reinsurance coniracts held

The net finance income or expenses from insurance and reinsurance contracts is presented in the statement of profit or
loss with a split between insurance contracts issued and reinsurance contracts held.

This aggregate comprises the changes in the carrying amount of the groups of contracts that relate to financial risk
arising from both (i) the effect of the time value of money and changes in the time value of money, (ii) the effect of
financial risk and changes in financial risk (i.e. effect of changes in discount rates, exchange rate, the time value of
options and guarantees).

However, the option to disaggregate insurance (and reinsurance) financial income or expense between the statement of
profit or loss and the OCI is applied by the Company in order to limit the volatility in profit or loss (considering that
many of the supporting financial assets are measured at FVOCI under HKFRS 9).

Under this option, for contracts without direct participation features, the difference between the valuation of the
liabilities at locked-in rates (used for the unwind in the finance income or expenses) and their valuation at current rates
is recognized in OCI. In the same way, when changes in liabilities arise from a contractual link (indexation) between
inflation and the payments to policyholders, the changes due to inflation that relate to future services shall also be
considered as resulting from a financial risk and therefore are recognized through OCI with a release over the duration
of the payments to the policyholders. The amount included in the statement of profit or loss is determined by a
systematic allocation of the expected total insurance (and reinsurance) finance income or expenses over the duration of
the group of contracts. This systematic allocation is based on the characteristics of the contracts, depending on whether
the changes in assumptions relating to financial risk have a substantial effect on the amount paid to the policyholder or
not:

* when the changes in financial risk assumptions do not have a substantial effect on amounts paid to the policyholders,
the systematic allocation is determined using the discount rates at the date of initial recognition of the groups of
contracts measured with the BBA and at the date of the incurred claims for groups of contracts applying the PAA,

» when the changes in financial risk assumptions do have a substantial effect on amounts paid to the policyholder, the
systematic allocation is determined by using a rate that allocates the remaining revised expected finance income or
expenses over the remaining duration of the group of contracts at a constant rate (i.e. the effective yield approach)
or a crediting rate based on the amounts credited to the policyholders in the period and expected to be credited in
future periods (i.e. the projected crediting approach).

The Company also applies the OCI option for direct participating contracts. It consists in recognizing in finance income

or expenses {(with OCI as a balance) an amount that exactly matches the income or expenses included in profit or loss
on the underlying items held, resulting in the net of the separately presented items being nil.
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4,

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS IN APPLYING ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The Company makes estimates and assumptions that may affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities. Estimates
and judgements are continually evaluated and based on historical experience and other factors, including expectations
of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. Actual results can always differ from
estimates, possibly significantly.

Estimate of future cash flows arising from long-term insurance contracts

The determination of the liabilities under long-term insurance contracts is dependent on estimates made by the
Company, which primarily includes the probabilities of the following events:

+  Mortality and morbidity
The Company sets assumptions on mortality and morbidity with reference to historical experience and
standard industry experience tables if available. Where appropriate, the Company also makes reference to
other sources, including but not limited to market data and experience for similar products, to develop the best

estimate expectation of the future experience.

Mortality assumptions:

% applied (Female / Male)

Group of insured Portfolio Rate table 2024 2023
Mainland Chinese Simplified CIRC10-13 62.5%/43.75% | 62.5%/43.75%
Visitors underwriting

Other life business | CIRC10-13 50% /35% 50%/35%
Other National Life HKA18 (adjusted) 90% / 90% 90% / 85%

Simplified HKA18 (adjusted) 112.5%/ 112.5%/

underwriting 112.5% 106.25%

Business formerly | HKA18 (adjusted) 85% / 100% 85%/95%

transferred from

AXA (HK) Life

Insurance Company

Limited

Other life business | HKA 18 (adjusted) 75% / 75% 75% /7 75%

Morbidity assumptions:

Group of % applied (Female / Male)
Portfolio insured Rate table 2024 2023
ClI basic Mainland In-house CI rate table 105% / 80% 105% / 80%
Chinese Visitors
Other In-house CI rate table 100% / 110% 95% /105%
Accelerated CI All In-house CI rate table 100% / 90% 100% /90%
Additional CI All In-house CI rate table 130% / 120% 135%/125%
Business formerly All In-house CI rate table 115%/115% 95%/95%
transferred from
AXA (HK) Life
Insurance Company
Limited

s  Persistency

Persistency includes various policyholders' behaviours, such as lapse, surrender, premium holiday, partial
withdrawal, etc. where relevant. The Company sets assumptions on persistency with reference to historical
experience. Where appropriate, the Company also makes reference to other sources, including but not limited
to market data and experience for similar products, to develop the best estimate expectation of the future
eXpETIence,
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4, CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS IN APPLYING ACCOUNTING POLICIES -
continued

Estimate of future cash flows arising from long-term insurance contracts - continued

s  Expenses

The Company regularly conducts expense analysis and projection to forecast and categorise the expenses spent
into various categories. Products are grouped according to their nature of risk and expenses are allocated to
the product groups. The allocated expenses are further unitised based on policy count, premium amount, etc.
to form the best estimate assumption of expenses. »

e Discretionary cash flows
To determine how to identify changes in discretionary cash flows for the participating business contracts, the
Company generally regards its commitment to be the return implicit in the estimates of the fulfilment cash
flows on initial recognition, updated to reflect current operating and financial risk assumptions.

These assumptions are reviewed on an annual basis to ensure that they remain relevant and appropriate.
Discount rate

AXA Group (refer to AXA SA together with its direct and indirect consolidated subsidiaries) has defined a Group
methodology for the calibration and the generation of “HKFRS 17 vield curves” used to discount the estimate of future cash
flows within the boundary of contracts, consistent with the HKFRS 17 requirements and applied homogeneously across all
AXA entities. The Company applies the same HKFRS 17 yield curves for the purpose of the measurement under HKFRS
17.

A bottom-up approach is adopted as it has been widely used for many years in the EEV and Solvency II frameworks. This
approach consists in using a basic Risk-Free Rate (“RFR”), based on swaps for most currencies and government bonds for
others, adjusted by adding on a liquidity premium (“LP”) allowance to reflect the remuneration of illiquidity observed on
traded assets until the Last Liquid Point (“LLP™), meaning the longest maturity for which there are encugh traded bonds.
An Ultimate Forward Rate (“UFR™) macro-economically defined as the sum of the average of past real interest rates and
centval bank’s target inflation is also considered. Discount rates between the LLP and the UFR maturities are obtained by
extrapolation.

The yield curves used by the Company for main currencies are summarized in the below table,

2024 2023
Maturity HXD spot USD spot HKD spot USD spot
1 4.1% 4.7% 4.5% 54%
N 4.0% 4.7% 3.9% 4.8%
3 3.9% 4.7% 3.7% 4.6%
5 3.9% 4.8% 3.5% 4.4%
7 3.9% 4.9% 3.5% 4.4%
10 3.9% 5.0% 3.5% 4.4%
15 4.0% 5.3% 3.6% 4.6%
20 3.9% 5.5% 3.6% 4.9%
95 3.9% 5.3% 3.6% 4.7%
30 3.8% 52% 3.6% 4.5%

The Company has chosen to apply the “OCI option” (refer to Note 3.22) to all portfolio of insurance contracts, atlowing to
recognize the impact of changes in discount rates through Other Comprehensive Income,
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS IN APPLYING ACCOUNTING POLICIES -
continued

Real World (RW) deterministic assumptions

The Company sets the RW deterministic assumptions to estimate the expected return of the underlying items and determine
the appropriate pattern of the CSM release. The main Real World assumptions used by the Company are summarized in the
below table.

Asset class 2025 2029 2034
10-year government bond 4.4% 3.8% 3.7%
5-year single-A credit spread 0.7% 0.9% 0.9%
U.S. equities 5.3% 7.4% 6.5%
H.K. equities 4.9% 4.6% 4.2%

RW assumptions are based on AXA Group’s Chief Economist studies that rely on AXA IM’s Research and Investment
Strategy team for the short term and on academic literature, international organizations (e.g. IMF, World Bank) studies and
dedicated structural models for the long term. Then, RW assumptions are reviewed and validated by the Group Economic
Assumptions Committee, in charge of determining economic assumptions to be used for a variety of local and Group
processes. This Committee is co-chaired by the Group Chief Financial Officer and the Group Chief Risk Officer,

Risk adjustment for non-financial risks

In respect of determining the compensation the Company requires for bearing the non-financial risks, the Company
considers the 65th percentile as the adequate level for RA.

The determination of the risk adjustment follows a value-at-risk type approach, reflecting a retained confidence level with
reference to the risk drivers of reserves. The value-at-risk is the maximum loss within a certain confidence level. The
implementation is slightly different between Life and Savings and Property and Casualty businesses. For Life and Savings,
groups of contracts are first shocked, risk factor by risk factor, up to the retained confidence level to assess the change in
the present value of future cash flows. Then, diversification benefits between risks implicit to the Company’s portfolio are
considered by applying correlation factors between risks. For Property and Casualty liabilities for incurred claims, a direct
value-at-risk calculation, reflecting the retained confidence level, is applied to the full probability distribution of the reserves.
Finally, the Company, as a member of the AXA Group, measures the compensation required taking into account the risk
appetite of AXA Group, so a diversification effect between AXA entities is considered to reflect the fact that a same risk is
unlikely to impact all the Group’s entities at the same time.

The determination of the risk adjustment for reinsurance contracts is based on the risk adjustment associated with the direct
contracts, adjusted based on the expected reinsurance recoveries in relation to the expected outgoings from its corresponding
direct contracts. This approach ensures that the risk adjustment for reinsurance contracts accurately reflects the financial
implications of the reinsurance arrangements in relation to their corresponding underlying direct contracts.

Impairment of assets

The Company recognises loss allowance for ECL on debt instruments measured at FVOCI, and financial assets measured
at amortised cost. The measurement of ECL require both quantitative assessments based on AXA’s HKFRS9 rating which
include forward-looking information and qualitative assessment based on expert judgement. Details of the inputs,
assumptions and estimation techniques used for estimating ECL are explained in note 3.3(d).

Fair value of financial assets/liabilities

The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market is determined by using valuation techniques.
Valuation techniques include the use of recent arm’s length transactions, net asset value reported to general partners or
managers by fund administrators, discounted cash flow analysis / option pricing models, and other valuation techniques
commonly used by market participants.
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4, CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS IN APPLYING ACCOUNTING POLICIES -
continued

Contractual service margin

¢  Determination of coverage units
The C8M of a group of contracts is recognised in profit or loss to reflect services provided in each year based on
the number of coverage units provided in the year compared with the number of coverage units expected to be
provided in future years, which is determined by considering for each contract the quantity of benefits provided
and its expected coverage period. The coverage units are reviewed and updated at each reporting date. The
Company determines the quantity of coverage unit as follows:
a. Coverage unit of insurance service equals to the maximum level of coverage defined within the contract
(or balance of the expected amount if the maximum [evel is not available) less investment component
b. Coverage unit of investment service equals to the investment component

*  Risk mitigation option
The Company uses derivatives to mitigate the financial risk arising from guarantees in certain traditional
participating contracts in accordance with its documented risk management objective and strategy for mitigating
financial risk. An economic offset exists between the insurance contracts and the risk mitigating items,

The Company has chosen to recognize changes in the amount of its share of the fair value of the underlying items
and changes in fulfilment cash flows due to changes in the effect of financial risk not arising from underlying items
that are mitigated by the use of derivatives in profit or loss and not to adjust CSM.

Investment components

The Company identifies the investment component of a contract by determining the amount that it would be required to
repay the policyholder in all scenarios with commercial substance. These include circumstances in which an insured event
occurs or the contract matures or is terminated without an insured event occurring. Investment components are excluded
from insurance revenue and insurance service expenses.

5. MANAGEMENT OF INSURANCE AND FINANCIAL RISKS
Insurance and financial risk management objectives and policies

The Company issues contracts that transfer insurance risk or financial risk or both. This section summarises these risks,
including other market risks, that the Company identifies and the way it manages them.

5.1 Insurance risk

The risk under any one insurance contract is the possibility that the insured event occurs and the amount of the resulting
claim is uncertain. By the very nature of an insurance contract, this risk is random and therefore unpredictable.

For a portfolio of insurance contracts where the theory of probability is applied to pricing and reserving, the principal
risk that the Company faces under its insurance contracts is that the actual claims and benefit payments exceed the
carrying amount of the insurance liabilities. This could occur when the frequency or severity of claims and benefits is
greater than estimated. Insurance events are random and the actual number and amount of claims and benefits will vary
from year to year from the level established using statistical techniques.

Factors that could potentially aggravate insurance risk include lack of risk diversification in terms of type and amount
of risk, geographical location and type of industry covered.

Both experience and theory show that the larger the portfolio of similar insurance contracts, the smaller the relative
variability about the expected outcome will be. In addition, a more diversified portfolio is less likely to be affected
across the board by a change in any subset of the portfolio. The Company has developed its insurance underwriting
strategy to diversify the type of insurance risks accepted and within each of these categories to achieve a sufficiently
large population of risks to reduce the variability of the expected cutcome.
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3.

MANAGEMENT OF INSURANCE AND FINANCIAL RISKS - continued

5.1 Insurance risk — continued
(a) Casualty and property insurance risks
(i) Frequency and severity of claims

The frequency and severity of claims can be affected by several factors. These include weather, society’s sentiment
towards claims and increasing court awards for bodily injury compensation.

The Company manages these risks through its underwriting strategy, product design, adequate reinsurance
arrangements and proactive claims handling.

The underwriting strategy attempts to ensure that the underwritten risks are well diversified in terms of type and amount
of risk, industry and geography. Prior to the acceptance of major risk, site visits by in-house assessor and pre-risk
surveys will be performed to ensure risks are only accepted within the Company’s capacity.

Underwriting limits are in place to enforce appropriate risk selection criteria and ensure that the Company is protected
adequately by the reinsurance arrangements. In addition, the Company has the right not to renew individual policies,
impose deductibles where applicable and reject the payment of a fraudulent claim, Insurance contracts also entitle the
Company to pursue third parties for payment of some or all costs (i.e., subrogation).

3in Sources of uncertainty in the estimation of future claim payments

Claims on casualty and property contracts are payable on a claims-occurrence basis. The Company is liable for all
insured events that occur during the term of the contract, even if the loss is discovered after the end of the contract term.

For casualty risks, claims can be settled over a long period of time and a larger element of the claims provision relates
to incurred but not reported (*IBNR™} claims. There are several variables that affect the amount and timing of cash
flows from these contracts. These mainly relate to the inherent risks of the business activities carried out by individual
contract holders and their risk management procedures. The compensation paid on these contracts is the monetary
awards granted for bodily injury suffered by employees (for employer’s liability covers) or members of the public (for
public liability covers). Such awards are lump-sum payments that are calculated as the present value of the lost earnings
and rehabilitation expenses that the injured party will incur as a result of the accident. For property risks, claims are
usually of a much shorter duration and relatively fewer IBNR claims are held at year-end.

The estimated cost of claims includes direct expenses to be incurred in settling claims, net of the expected subrogation
value and other recoveries. The Company takes all reasonable steps to ensure that it has appropriate information
regarding its claims exposures. However, given the uncertainty in establishing claims provisions, it is likely that the
final outcome will prove to be different from the original liability established. The liability for these contracts comprises
a provision for IBNR, a provision for reported claims not yet paid and a provision for unexpired risks at the end of the
reporting period.
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5. MANAGEMENT OF INSURANCE AND FINANCIAL RISKS - continued
5.1 Insurance risk - continued
(b) Long-term insurance contracts
(@ Frequency and severity of claims

The Company manages these risks through its underwriting strategy and reinsurance arrangements.

The underwriting strategy is intended to ensure that the risks underwritten are well diversified in terms of type of risk
and the level of insured benefits. For example, medical selection is included in the Company’s underwriting procedures
with premiums varied to reflect the health condition and family medical history of the applicants. The Company also
underwrites using geographical, nationality and occupation rating.

For contracts where death is the insured risk, the most significant factors that could increase the overall frequency of
claims are epidemics (such as AIDS or SARS) or widespread changes in lifestyle, such as eating, smoking and exercise
habits, resulting in earlier or more claims than expected. Undue concentration by amounts could have an impact on the
severity of benefit payments on a portfolio basis.

For contracts with only fixed and guaranteed benefits and fixed future premiums, there are no mitigating terms and
conditions that reduce the insurance risk once it has been accepted. For contracts with DPF, insurance risk can be
shared with the contract holder.

For unit-linked business, the Company charges for mortality risk on a monthly basis, It has the right to alter these
charges based on its mortality experience and hence minimise its exposure to mortality risk., Delays in implementing
increases in charges and market or regulatory restraints over the extent of the increases may reduce its mitigating effect.

(i) Sources of uncertainty in the estimation of future cash flows

Uncertainty in the estimation of future cash flows for long-term insurance contracts arises from the unpredictability of
changes in overall levels of mortality / morbidity and the variability in persistency.

An investigation into the actual experience of the Company over the last three to five years is carried out on annual
basis, and statistical methods are used to produce a best estimate of expected mortality and morbidity for the future.
The impact of any historical evidence of selective termination behaviour will be reflected in this experience.

(iii) Guaranteed annuity options

The amount of insurance risk under contracts with guaranteed annuity options is also dependent on the number of
contract holders that will exercise their option (‘option take-up rate’). This will depend significantly on the investment
conditions that apply when the options can be exercised. The lower the current market interest rates in relation to the
rates implicit in the guaranteed annuity rates, the more likely it is that contract holders will exercise their options.
Continuing improvements in longevity reflected in current annuity rates will increase the likelihood of contract holders
exercising their options as well as increasing the level of insurance risk borne by the Company under the annuities
issued. To date, a very small number of the contract holders have exercised this option and hence the Company does
not have sufficient historical data on which to base its estimate of the number of contract holders who will exercise
their options. As a result of this, the Company estimates the cost of this option to be insignificant under the current
economic environment.
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AXA CHINA REGION INSURANCE COMPANY (BERMUDA) LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2024

5. MANAGEMENT OF INSURANCE AND FINANCIAL RISKS - continued
5.1 Insurance risk - continued
(c) Short-duration life insurance contracts
(i) Frequency and severity of claims

These contracts are mainly issued to employers to insure their commitments to their employees in terms of their pension
fund and other employee benefit plans. The risk is affected by the nature of the industry in which the employer operates,
in addition to the factors described above. The risk of death and disability will vary by industry. Undue concentration
of risk by industry will therefore increase the risk of a change in the underlying average mortality or morbidity of
employees in a given industry, with significant effects on the overall insurance risk.

Insurance risk under disability contracts is also dependent on economic conditions in the industry. Historical data
indicates that recession and unemployment in an industry will increase the number of claims for disability benefits as
well as reducing the rate of recovery from disability, The Company attempts to manage this risk through its
underwriting, claims handling and reinsurance policy. The amount of disability benefit cover provided per individual
is restricted to a maximum of 70% of the individual’s monthly income for individual life business. Surplus reinsurance
contracts have been purchased by the Company, the retention is HK$40,000 per month on any one life.

(ii) Sources of uncertainty in the estimation of future claim payments

There is no need to estimate mortality rates or morbidity rates for future years because these contracts have short
duration. However, for incurred disability income claims, it is necessary to estimate the rates of recovery from disability
for future years.

52 Financial risk

The Company is exposed to financial risk through its financial assets, financial liabilities (investment contracts and
borrowings}, reinsurance contract assets and insurance contract kiabilities. In particular the key financial risk is that the
proceeds from its financial assets are not sufficient to fund the obligations arising from its insurance and investment
contracts. The most important components of financial risk are liquidity risk and market risks, which include interest
rate risk, equity price risk, credit risk and currency risk.

These risks arise from open positions in interest rate, currency and equity products, all of which are exposed to general
and specific market movements. The risks that the Company primarily faces due to the nature of its investments and
liabilities are interest rate risk and equity price risk.

The Company manages these positions within an asset liability management (“ALM") framework that has been
developed to achieve long-term investment returns in excess of its obligations under insurance and investment contracts.

The Risk Committee of the Company identifies the risk appetite of the Company and assesses the Company’s risk
exposure regularly. The Company has a Management Investment Committee that determines the investment strategy
accordingly. A set of the Company’s investment mandate is then distributed to the Company’s fund managers, which
provides appropriate guidelines with respect to the portfolio they manage. These investment instructions within specify
limits for each portfolio with respect to authorised securities (including derivatives), gearing, free liquidity,
concentration, currency, duration and credit limits {where applicable). Each fund manager regularly monitors its
portfolios against these criteria and reports breaches.
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5.

MANAGEMENT OF INSURANCE AND FINANCIAIL RISKS - continued
53 Liguidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting its obligations associated with its
financial liabilities due to shortage of liquid funds. In particular to the Company, the risk that the Company’s financial
assets are insufficient to fund the guaranteed benefit payments required under its insurance and investment contracts
when they fall due.

The Company manages the liquidity risk by holding sufficient liquid assets such as cash and short-term deposits. The
underlying investments backing the liabilities that are traded in an active market and are readily disposed of can also
meet the requirement of benefit payments as needed. For the underlying investment backing the liabilities that are not
traded in an active market, the Company has the contractual right to proceed to payment upon surrender/settlement
when and only when the underlying asset itself is settled.
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AXA CHINA REGION INSURANCE COMPANY (BERMUDA) LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2024

5.

MANAGEMENT OF INSURANCE AND FINANCIAL RISKS - continued

54 Interest rate risk
(a) Long-term insurance contracts and investment contracts with DPF

Insurance and investment contracts with DPF have benefit payments whose financial component is usually a guaranteed
fixed interest rate (for the insurance contracts, this rate may apply to maturity and/or death benefits) and hence the
Company’s primary financial risk on these contracts is the risk that interest income and capital redemptions from the
financial assets backing the liabilities are insufficient to fund the guaranteed benefits payable. There are also
supplemental benefits payable (which are not guaranteed) to holders of these contracts. These are based on historic
and current rates of return on the assets in which the funds are invested, as well as the Company’s expectations of future
investiment returns.

The Company mainly bears financial risk in relation to the guaranteed benefits payable under these contracts. In
addition, the Company bears partially the financial risk in relation to the non-guaranteed benefits payable due to the
profit sharing mechanism between policyholders and shareholders.

(b) Investment contracts without DPF

For linked contracts, the financial risks are borne by the policyholder. Therefore, the Company does not have any
market risk exposure in relation to these contracts.

The Company’s primary exposure to financial risk from these contracts is the risk of volatility in asset management
fees due to the impact of interest rate and market price movements on the fair value of the assets held in the linked
funds, on which investment management fees are based.

() Short-term insurance contracts

No material interest rate risk exists for short term insurance liabilities, as they are not directly sensitive to the level of
market interest rates since they are undiscounted and contractually non-interest-bearing.

(d) Interest rate swap and step up swap

The Company entered into interest rate swap to abtain economic benefit and manage its duration gap.

(e) Investment portfolio

The Company is exposed to interest rate risk on the investment portfolio because any changes in interest rates would
affect the value of fixed interest debt investments carried at fair value and which may differ from corresponding changes,

if any, in the value of the liabilities. The Company mitigates interest rate risk through its asset liability management
process.
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AXA CHINA REGION INSURANCE COMPANY (BERMUDA) LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2024

5.

MANAGEMENT OF INSURANCE AND FINANCIAL RISKS - continued
5.5 Credit risk

The Company has exposure to credit risk, which is the risk that a counterparty will be unable to pay amounts in full
when due. Key areas where the Company is exposed to credit risk are:

- receivables arising from direct insurance and inward reinsurance operations

- receivables arising from outward reinsurance operations

- investments in debt securities

- counterparty risk with respect to derivative transactions and

- cash and deposits

The Company structures the levels of credit risk it accepts by placing limits on its exposure to a single counterparty, or
groups of counterparty. Such risks are subject to an annual or more frequent review. Limits on the level of credit risk are
subject to approval from relevant risk committee.

Reinsurance is used to manage insurance risk. This does not, however, discharge the Company’s liability as a primary
insurer. If'areinsurer fails to pay a claim for any reason, the Company remains liable for the payment to the policyholder,
The creditworthiness of reinsurers is considered on an annual basis by reviewing their financial strength prior to
finalisation of any coniract and 1o ensure ongoing creditworthiness of the reinsurer,

The maximum credit risk for financial assets recognised on the statement of financial position is their carrying amounts.

(i} Analysis of underlying credit exposure:
Issuers’ Credit ratings per Standard & Poor’s and Fitch
AA+to At+to BBB+io BB+io B+10 B- Not
AAA AA- A- BBR- BB- or below rated Total
USH000 USS000  USH000 USS000 US$000  USH000 USHO00  USH 000

As at 31 December 2024

Debt securities 682,194 5,897,028 3,585,029 3,331,576 96,889 26,810 101,390 13,720,916
Reinsurance assets - 716,906 4,334,490 - - - 1 5,051,357
Other financial assets - 18,975 567,474 - - - 258,953 845,402
Cash and deposits - 16,198 342,247 175,637 - - 31,879 565,961
Total assets bearing credit risk 682,194 6,649,107 8,829,240 3,507,213 96,889 26,810 392,223 20,183,676
As at 31 December 2023:

Debt securities 828,224 4,436,280 3,271,493 3,415,816 108,547 30,256 331,346 12,421,962
Reinsurance assets - 785,633 4,264,376 - - - 8,593 5,058,602
Other financial assets - 10,594 478,292 - - - 398,722 887,608
Cash and deposits - 27,239 883,542 403,089 - - 38,752 1,352,622
Total assets bearing credit risk 828,224 5,259,746 8,897,703 3,818,905 108,547 30,256 777,413 19,720,794
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AXA CHINA REGION INSURANCE COMPANY (BERMUDA) LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2024

5.

MANAGEMENT OF INSURANCE AND FINANCIAL RISKS - continued
5.5 Credit risk - continued
(i) Collateral under derivative transaction

At 31 December 2024, the Company had posted Nil cash collateral (2023: US$139m) and pledged debt
securities with carrying value of US$1,648m (2023: US$1,207m) for liabilities, and held cash collateral of
US107m (2023: US$132m) and debt securities collateral with carrying value of US$444m (2023: US$395m)
for assets in respect of derivatives transactions,

The Company holds a group of derivative assets and derivatives liabilities entered into with a particular
counterparty. The Company takes into account the arrangements that mitigate credit risk exposure in the event
of defaunlt through International Swap and derivatives Association Master agreements and Credit Support
Annex that require the exchange of collateral on the basis of each party's net credit risk exposure. The exposure
is measured at the fair value of derivatives on the basis of its net exposure to the credit risk of counterparty or
the counterparty's net exposure to our credit risk such an arrangement would be legally enforceable in the
event of default.

5.6 Price risk

To manage its price risk arising from investments in equity securities, the Company diversifies its portfolio.
Diversification of the portfolio is done accordance with the limits set by the Company.

5.7 Currency risk

The Company monitors overall currency exposure and decides on hedging implementations within the constraints of
the mandates. Foreign currency exposure, arising from assets, liabilities and derivatives is monitored regularly and
hedged when deemed appropriate and to the extent practicable,

The Company operates in Hong Kong and issues Hong Kong dollar and United States dollar denominated policies.
The Company's policy is to generally invest in assets denominated in the same currencies and / or assets in foreign
currencies hedged back to the currencies of the insurance liabilities, which mitigate the Company's foreign currency
exchange rate risk. As at 31 December 2024, the majority of the Company's assets are denominated in United States
dollars and Hong Kong dollars. Since the Hong Kong dollars are currently pegged to the United States dollars, the
impact of exchange rate fluctuation is insignificant to the results of the Company.

Within the constraints of the investment mandates, the Company hedge its foreign currency exchange rate risk using
foreign exchange forward contracts in order to mitigate the impact of fluctuations in fair value of the investments as a
result of changes in foreign exchange rates,

The following table analyses the Company’s insurance and financial liabilities and the financial assets backing these
liabilities into relevant currency groupings based on the currency in which these insurance and financial liabilities and
financial assets are denominated. The financial assets in the following table include amounts recoverable from
reinsurers. Where the value of the insurance and financial liabilities are linked to the value of its backing assets and the
currency risk is not borne by the Company, these insurance and financial liabilities and their backing assets are not
included in the analysis. The value of the insurance and financial liabilities that are linked to the value of its backing
assets amounted to US$3,264,742,046 (2023: US$3,135,958,604).

-54 -



AXA CHINA REGION INSURANCE COMPANY (BERMUDA) LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2024

3. MANAGEMENT OF INSURANCE AND FINANCIAL RISKS - continued

5.7 Currency risk - continued

At 31 December 2024

Other
HK Dollars US Dollars currencies Total
USs$000 US$’000 Us$000 US$000
Financial assets 438,643 19,651,678 3,296,163 23,386,484
Financial liabilities (493,854) (3,397,124} (8,787) (3,899,765}
Insurance contract and
reinsurance contract assets 1,666,570 3,800,576 - 5,467,146
Insurance contract and
reinsurance contract liabilities (6,912,229} {16,468,843) (6,745) (23,387,817}
Net on-balance sheet position (5,300,870) 3,586,287 3,280,631 1,566,048
Off-balance sheet
net notional position* 1,714,603 429,664 (2,028,814) 115,453
(3,586,267) 4,015,951 1,251,817 1,681,501
At 31 December 2023
Other
HK Dollars US Dollars currencies Total
US$000 US$°000 US§’000 US$’000
Financial assets 70,606 17,224,201 3,003,046 20,297,853
Financial liabilities (306,540} (2,663,557) (6,421) (2,976,518)
Insurance contract and
reinsurance contract assets 1,699,543 3,736,038 212 5,435,793
Insurance contract and
reinsurance contract liabilities (6,419,401) (14,866,243) (3,702) (21,289,346)
Net on-balance sheet position (4,955,792) 3,430,439 2,993,135 1,467,782
Off-balance sheet
net notional position* 2,536,848 (1,983,630) (553,820} {602)
(2,418,944 1,446,809 2,439,315 1,467,180

*Oft- balance sheet net notional position represents the net notional amounts of foreign currency derivative financial

instruments, which are principally used to reduce the Company’s exposure to currency movements.
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5.

5.8

MANAGEMENT OF INSURANCE AND FINANCIAL RISKS - continued

Sensitivity analysis

The Company uses a number of sensitivity test-based risk management tools to understand the volatility of carnings,
the volatility of its capital requirements, and to manage its capital more efficiently. Sensitivities to economic and
operating experience are regularly produced to inform the Company’s decision making and planning process.

Some results of sensitivity testing for long-term business are set out below. For each sensitivity test the impact of a
reasonably possible change in a single factor is shown, with other assumptions left unchanged.

For non-economic sensitivities, the effects of a positive or negative change in the assumptions—such as a +10% and -10%
adjustment to mortality, morbidity, persistency, or expense assumptions—are relatively symmetric, demonstrating that the
outcomes are affected similarly by changes in either direction.

Sensitivity factor

(i) Interest rate and investment return

(i} Equity market values

(iii) Foreign Exchange Rate

(iv) Mortality

(v) Morbidity

(vi) Persistency

(vii) Expenses

Description of sensitivity factor applied

The impact of a change in market interest rates by 0.5% (e.g. current interest
rate is 5%, the impact of an immediate change to 4.5% and 5.5%). The test
allows consistently for similar changes to (i) investment returns; (ii)
movements in the market value of fixed interest securities; and (iii) insurance
and investment liabilities.

The impact of a change in equity market values by 5%

The impact of a 10% depreciation or appreciation of the Euro against other
currencies.

The impact of a change in mortality assumption by 10% (e.g. current
mortality rate is 5%, the impact of an immediate change to 5.5%).

The impact of a change in morbidity assumption by 10% (e.g. current
morbidity rate is 5%, the impact of an immediate change to 5.5%).

The impact of a change in persistency assumption, such as lapse, surrender,
premium holiday, partial withdrawal, etc. by 10% (e.g. current lapse rate is
5%, the impact of an immediate change to 5.5%).

The impact of a change in expense assumption by 10%.
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5. MANAGEMENT OF INSURANCE AND FINANCIAL RISKS - continued

5.8 Sensitivity analysis — continued

The following tables disclose details of the sensitivities for the relevant period

Impact on profit after tax and shareholders’equity

increase/(decrease)
Year ended 31.12.2024 Year ended 31.12.2023
inprofitor  in shareholders’ in profit or in shargholders’
loss equity loss gquity
USs$000 Uss$’000 US$’000 US$ 000
Assumed future return on market rate of interest + 26,852 (66,453) 64,053 {87,403)
0.5%
Assumed future return on market rate of interest - (34,661) 68,332 (59,841) 106,368
0.5%
Assumed future equity securities return rate -+ 5% (11,624) (5,703) (333) (14,879)
Assumed future equity securities return rate ~ 5% 11,639 5,790 729 15,089
Assumed EUR appreciates vs. all currencies 10% (5,957) 1,094 (2,063) 401
Assumed EUR depreciates vs. all currencies 10% 4,539 (1,133) 1,910 (254)
Assumed mortality assumption +10% (8,559 (372) (3,971) (4,574)
Assumed morbidity assumption +10% (5,323) (19,498) (4,183) (55,130)
Assumed persistency assumption -+10% (40,420) 3,913 (19,967) 22,043
Assumed expense assumption +10% (7,428) 2,537 (5,839) (1,560)
59 Capital management

The Company’s objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the ability to continue as a going concern and to comply
with capital requirements specified in the Insurance Ordinance, so that it can continue to provide returns for shareholders
and benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may adjust the amount of dividends paid to
shareholders or return capital to shareholders.

The Company monitors capital adequacy based on the Risk-based Capital Rules developed by the Hong Kong Insurance
Authority since the regime has come into operation on 1 July 2024, Before the implementation of Hong Kong Risk-
Based Capital regime, the Company monitor capital on the basis of the solvency ratio which is above the regulatory
requirement of 100%.

The Company is licensed by the Bermuda Monetary Authority (BMA) as a Class E long term insurer and is subject to the
Insurance Act 1978 and related regulations.
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6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS IN THREE LEVEL FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY

6.1 Fair value hierarchy

The table analyses the financial instruments carried at fair value by valuation method. The different levels have been
defined as follows:

e Level 1 (highest level): fair values measured using quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical
financial instruments

e Level 2: fair values measured using inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 that are observable
for the asset or liability, either directly (i.e. quoted prices in active markets for similar financial instruments,
quoted prices in not active markets for identical or similar financial instruments), or indirectly (i.e. valuation
techniques in which all significant inputs are based on observable market data)

* Level 3 (lowest level): fair values measured using valuation techniques in which the inputs are not based on
observable market data

The carrying value of financial instruments measured at fair value at the end of the reporting period across the above
three levels of the fair value measurements hierarchy is presented in the following tables:

At 31.12.2024 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
US$’000 UsS$000 UsS$ 000 Uss$000

ASSETS

Investment assets at FVOCI

Government Bonds 4,427,220 422,304 - 4,549,524

Other Debt Securities 5,318,001 3,358,237 - 8,676,238

Equities Securities 3,141,793 396,786 - 3,538,579

Investment assets at FVTPL
Investment in subsidiaries

= Unit Trust Investment 115,384 - - 115,384
Investment in associates

- Unit Trust Investment - - 104,351 104,351
Government Bonds 93,602 5,782 - 99,384
Other Debt Securities - 95,770 - 95,770
Equities Securities - 13,891 - 13,891
Unit Trust Investment 3,049,569 1,605,078 2,237,068 6,891,715
Private Companies - - 124,118 124,118

16,145,569 5,897,848 2,465,537 24,508,954

Derivatives financial instruments
- Forward Currency option 170,684 - - 170,684
- Equity options - 646 - 646
- Cross currency swap - 104,501 - 104,501
- Interest rate swap - - - -
- Forward interest rate swap - 206,166 - 206,166
- Asset swap - 13,479 - 13,479
- Credit default swap - - - -
- IR swaption - 16,996 - 16,996
- Equity forward - 73,977 - 73,977
- Bond forward - - - -
- Currency option - - - -
170,684 415,765 - 586,449
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6.

6.1

Fair value hierarchy - continued

At31.12.2024

LIABILITIES

Financial liabilities
- Investment confracts
Repurchase agreement and debt instrument

liabilities

Derivatives financial instruments
- Forward Currency option

- Equity options

- Cross currency swap

- Interest rate swap

- Forward interest rate swap

- Asset swap

- Credit default swap

- IR swaption

- Equity forward

- Bond forward

- Currency option

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS IN THREE LEVEL FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY - continued

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
US$’000 US§ 000 USs$000 Us$’000
1,154,294 - 136,520 1,290,814
- 2,356,345 - 2,356,345
55,230 - - 55,230
- 3,269 - 3,269
- 404 - 404
- 600,016 - 600,016
- 368,431 - 368,431
119 - - 119
- 23,964 - 23,964
- 174,309 - 174,309
1,209,643 3,526,738 136,520 4,872,901
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6.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS IN THREE LEVEL FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY - continued

6.1 Fair value hierarchy - continued

At31.12.2023

ASSETS

Investment assets at FVOCI
Government Bonds

Other Debt Securities
Equities Securities

Investment assets at FVTPL
Investment in subsidiaries

- Unit Trust Investment
Investinent in associates

- Unit Trust Investment
Government Bonds
Other Debt Securities
Equities Securities
Unit Trust Investment
Private Companies

Derivatives financial instruments
- Forward Currency option
- Equity options

- Cross currency swap

- Interest rate swap

- Forward interest rate swap
- Asset swap

- Credit default swap

- IR swaption

- Equity forward

- Bond forward

- Currency option

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

US$’000 US$’000 Us$’000 US$000
3,449,572 568,297 - 4,017,869
4,769,281 3,331,951 - 8,101,232
2,332,987 463,656 - 2,796,643
114,283 - - 114,283
- 103,298 - 103,298
200,768 5,120 - 205,388
- 96,973 - 96,973
- 13,417 - 13,417
2,810,663 1,049,787 1,493,630 5,354,080
- - 114,036 114,036
13,677,554 5,632.499 1,607,666 20,917,719
27,112 - - 27,112
- 5,674 - 5,674
- 107,392 - 107,392
- 31 - 31
- 235,667 - 235,667
- 15,988 - 15,988
670 - - 670
- 45,780 - 45,780
- 3,537 - 3,537
- 42,194 - 42,194
27,782 456,263 - 484,045
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6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS IN THREE LEVEL FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY - continued
6.1 Fair value hierarchy - continued
At31.12.2023 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
US$7000 US$’000 US$ 000 US$'000

LIABILITIES

Financial liabilities

- Investment contracts 1,142,485 - 141,564 1,284,049

Repurchase agreement and debt instrument

liabilities - 1,604,213 - 1,604,213

Derivatives financial instruments

- Forward Currency option 52,067 - - 52,067

- Equity options - 853 - 853

- Cross currency swap - 8,645 - 8,645

- Interest rate swap - 954 - 954

- Forward interest rate swap - 503,762 - 503,762

- Asset swap - 435,792 - 435,792

- Credit default swap 127 - - 127

- IR swaption - 1,234 - 1,234

- Equity forward - 19,104 - 19,104

- Bond forward - 10,863 - 10,863

- Currency option - - - -
1,194,679 2,585,420 141,564 3,921,663

As at 31 December 2024, there were US$572,954,837 (2023: US$1,660,108,744) transfers from Level 2 to Level 1 due to
the market for identical bonds becoming active. There were 1JS$331,170,202 (2023: US$86,113,364) transfers from Level
1 to Level 2 due to the market for identical bonds becoming inactive. The Company’s policy is to recognise transfers
between levels of fair value hierarchy as at the end of the reporting period in which they occur or change in circumstances
that caused the transfer.

6.2 Financial instrument in Level 1

The fair value of financial instruments traded in active markets is based on quoted market prices at the end of the reporting
period. A market is regarded as active if quoted prices are readily and regularly available from an exchange, dealer, broker,
industry group, pricing service, or regulatory agency, and those prices represent actual and regularly occurring market
transactions on an arm’s length basis. The quoted market price used for financial assets held by the Company is the current
bid price.

6.3 Financial instrument in Level 2

The fair value of financial instrurnents that are not traded in an active market is determined by using valuation techniques.
These valuation techniques maximise the use of observable market data where it is available and rely as little as possible on
entity specific estimates. If all significant inputs required to fair value an instrument are observable, the instrument is
included in Level 2.

Specific valuation techniques used to value financial instruments include:

- Quoted market prices or dealer quotes for similar instruments.
- Fair value is derived ftom the model based on current market parameters such as observable yield curve,
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6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS IN THREE LEVEL FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY - continued
6.4 Financial instrument in Level 3
Fair value Fair value
as at as at Valuation
Description 31.12.2024 31.12.2023 technique(s)
US$000 US$*000

Investment in associates 104,351 - Net asset value
Unlisted unit trust investments and others:

Unlisted unit trust 2,237,068 1,493,630 Net asset value
Private companies 124,118 114,036 Net asset value

The Company has determined that (1) the reported net asset value represents fair value of unlisted unit trust investments
(2} the Company’s net asset value represent fair value of private companies at the end of the reporting period, given the
different nature of valuation in respect of each unit trust and private company, it is not practical to quota a range of key
unobservable inpuis.

As certain unlisted unit trust investments are backing the unit linked contracts, any change to the fair valuation of these
investiments is retained by the policyholder. The valuation policies and procedures for the funds are established by the
fund managers or fund administrators based on the framework disclosed in the prospectus. Prospectuses for each unit
trust investment is obtained from the fund managers and reviewed by management for appropriateness of fair valuation
against the Company’s accounting policies. Upon execution of a recent transaction, the fair value of the transaction is
utilised to validate the fair valuation of the net asset value statement obtained from the fund manager. Discussions with
the fund managers are held on a periodic basis to go over the high level performance of the fund to analyse changes in
fair value measurements from period to period. In case of a year end valuation not being available, the Company has
carried out certain additional procedures to assess a relevant fair valuation as at 31 December 2024,

For unlisted non-linked unit trust investments, valuation process controls are obtained from fund managers or fund
administrators. Discussion of valuation processes and results are held between fund managers and investment team at
least onice every quarter. In the meeting, fund managers go over major transactions or highlights of the past period and
the potential investments. Investment performance are also presented and communicated with the members of the
management investment committee at regular meetings.

Under +1% change of the valuation technique(s) and keep other constant, the impact is as below:

Profit or loss {US$’000)

As at 31 Dec 2024 Investment in associates 1,044
Unlisted unit trust investments 22,371
Private companies 1,241
As at 31 Dec 2023 Unlisted unit trust investments 14,936
Private companies 1,140
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6.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS IN THREE LEVEL FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY - continued

6.4 Financial instrument in Level 3 - continued

The reconciliation from beginning to ending balance for the assets and liabilities that are classified as Level 3 is

presented as follows:

Financial assets

At 1 January 2023

Payment for purchases

Proceeds from sales

Transfer into level 3 during the year

Transfer from level 3 to level 1 / level 2 during the year

Net total losses for the period recognised in profit or loss

- Included in net realised and unrealised losses on investments

At 31 December 2023

Payment for purchases

Proceeds from sales

Transfer into level 3 during the year

Transfer from level 3 to level 1 / level 2 during the year

Net total gains for the period recognised in profit or loss

- Included in net realised and unrealised gains on investments

At 31 December 2024
Change in unrealised gains for 2024 recognised in profit or loss
- Included in net realised and unrealised gains on investments

Change in unrealised gains for 2023 recognised in profit or loss

- Included in net realised and unrealised gains on investments

At 31 December 2023

Transfer into level 3 during the year

At 31 December 2024

Financial assets at
fair value through
profit or [oss
US$’000

1,406,636
483,783
(246,357)
24,094

(60,490)

1,607,666
1,224,427
(821,395)

326,720

23,768

2,361,186

23,768

(60,490)

Investment in associates

US$7000

104,351
104,351

As at 31 December 2024, there are unlisted unit trust investment US$326,720,147 and investiment in associates
US$104,351,178 transfer from level 2 into level 3 (2023: unlisted unit trust investment US$24,094,369 transfer from level

2 into level 3) due to the change of levelling classification of commercial real estate.
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6.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS IN THREE LEVEL FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY - continued

6.4 Financial instrument in Level 3 - continued

Financial liabilities

At 1 January 2023
Net movement in investment contract liabilities from contributions
and releases

At 31 December 2023
Net movement in investment contract liabilities from contributions
and releases

At 31 December 2024

INSURANCE REVENUE

The table below presents an analysis of the total insurance revenue recognised in the period:

Contracts not measured under the PAA

Amounts relating to the changes in the LRC

Expected incurred claims and other expenses after loss component
allocation

Change in the risk adjustment for the risk expired after loss
component allocation

CSM recognized in profit or loss for the services provided
Insurance acquisition cash flows recovery
Insurance revenue from contracts not measured under the PAA
Insurance revenue from contracts measured under the PAA
Total insurance revenue
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Financial liabilities at

fair value through
profit or loss
US$000
147,197
(5,633
141,564
(5,044)
136,520
Year ended Year ended
31.12.2024 31.12.2023
Uss$ Uss
474,158,738 425,839,621
11,500,975 10,632,659
379,687,533 412,539,548
207,469,612 113,025,615
1,072,816,858 962,037,443
133,502,924 97,033,511

1,206,319,782

1,059,070,954
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8. NET FINANCIAL RESULT
" {a) Company’s net financial result in profit or loss and other comprehensive income
Year ended Year ended
- 31.12.2024 31.12.2023
Uss Uss
Investment return
- Interest revenue on financial assets 609,983,158 511,256,622
Other investment return 126,250,357 442,031,250
Net impairment loss on financial assets 2,113,539 (1,476,651)
Amounts recognised in statement of profit or loss 738,347,054 951,811,221
- Amounts recognised in other comprehensive income 130,805,683 508,854,945
Total investment return 869,152,737 1,460,666,166
Net finance expenses from insurance contracts
] Changes in fair value of underlying items of confracts with direct
participation features (865,701,880) (1,311,917,554)
Effect of risk mitigation option 117,501,553 95,939,266
Interest accreted (90,874,223) (72,571,340)
] Effect of changes in interest rates and other financial assumptions {44,520) -
Effect of measuring changes in estimates al current rates and adjusting
the CSM at the rates on initial recognition 95,288,163 (35,232,600)
Net foreign exchange gains/(losses) 104,251,411 (3,067,169)
Other (26,571,488) (22,208,859}
Total net finance expenses from insurance contracts (666,150,984) {1,349,058,256)
Net finance (expenses) / income from reinsurance contracts held
Interest accreted 125,331,227 99,904,122
Effect of changes in FCF at current rates when CSM is unlocked at
locked-in rates (140,329,366) 194,504,255
Net foreign exchange (losses)/gains (27,705,512) 2,001,702
Total net finance (expenscs) / income from reinsurance contracts
held (42,703,651} 296,410,079
l Net change in investment contract liabilities (133,532,763) (116,695,736)
Net financial result 26,765,339 291,322,253
Net financial result is represented by:
Amounts recognised in statement of profit or loss 48,895,224 188,722,940
— Ameounts recognised in other comprehensive income {22,129.885) 102,599,313
Net financial result 26,765,339 291,322,253
Net finance (expenses) / income from insurance contracts are
- represented by:
Amounts recognised in statement of profit or loss (655,206,757) (748,409,908)
Amounts recognised in other comprehensive income (10,944,227) (600,648,348)
_ Total net finance expenses from insurance contracts (666,150,984) (1,349,058,256)
Net finance (expenses) / income from reinsurance contracts held
are represented by:
Amounts recognised in statement of profit or loss 99,287,690 102,017,363
Amounts recognised in other comprehensive income (141,991,341) 194,392,716
-d Total net finance (expenses) / income from reinsurance contracts
held (42,703,651) 296,410,079

Included in investment return, there are interest revenue calculated using the effective interest method of US$609,983,158 (2023:
US$487,447.001).
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8. NET FINANCIAL RESULT - continued

{b) Other investment return

2024

Dividend income

Net gains / (losses} on FVTPL
investments and other interest income

Net loss on derecognition of FVOCI
investments

Net exchange losses

Amount recognised in profit and loss

Amount recognised in OCl

2023

Dividend income

Net gains / (losses) on FVTPL
investments and other interest income

Net loss on derecognition of FVOCI
investments

Net exchange gains

Amount recognised in profit and loss

Amount recognised in OCI

FVOCI EVTPL FVTPL
Mandatory Mandatory Designated Total
USS USS USS US$
102,346,443 72,390,296 - 174,736,739
- 304,423,986 (11,318,901) 293,105,085
(126,088,116) - - (126,088,116}
(129,567,306} (85,239,888) (696,157) (215,503,351)
{153,308,979) 291,574,394 (12,015,058) 126,250,357
130,805,683 - - 130,805,683

FVOCI FVTPL FVTPL
Mandatory Mandatory Designated Total
Uss USs USS USs
89,607,961 87,919,630 - 177,527,391
- 4,320,490 201,433,360 205,753,850
(14,843,633) - - (14,843,633)
31,441,528 41,510,179 641,735 73,593,442
106,205,856 133,750,299 202,075,095 442,031,250
508,854,945 - - 508,854,945
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9. PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION

Profit before taxation has been arrived at
after charging:

Auditors’ remuneration

Directors’ remuneration

Depreciation of plant and equipment
Depreciation of right-of-use assets

Amortisation of intangible assets

Staff costs (note}

Pension costs — defined contribution plans {note)

and after crediting:

Exchange losses

Year ended
31.12,2024
US$

1,779,203
65,333
304,088
1,124,234
18,334,380

70,790,188

Year ended
31.12.2023
Us$

2,011,505
61,151
302,506
1,138,523
15,841,084

(230,222)

Note:  Staff costs and pension costs for the current and prior year were borne and recharged to the Company by an
insurer subsidiary. The directors received unapportioned remuneration of US$2,217,163 (2023:
US$1,788,134) from the Company’s holding companies, fellow subsidiaries, associates or any other company
for the directors’ services to certain companies in the AXA China Region Group. Aggregated and
unapportioned amount of top three highest-paid directors’ emoluments is US$2,217,163 (2023: US$1,788,134).
Estimated money value of benefits other than cash within directors’ emoluments include medical premium, group
life premium, staff share options, performance units and child education benefits.
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10. TAXATION

The charge comprises:

Current tax:
Hong Kong Profits Tax
- Current tax on profits for the year
- Adjustments in respect of prior years

Overseas

- Current tax on profits for the year {note (1))
- Adjustments in respect of prior years

- Overseas withholding tax

Total current tax

Deferred taxation (note 19}:
Origination and reversal of temporary differences
Adjustments in respect of prior years

Total deferred tax

Taxation

Year ended
31.12.2024
Us$

24,862,298
(3,740,387)

6,773,930
(3,114,357)
18,193,969

42,975,453

(3,721,393)
21,530

(3,699,863)

39,275,590

Year ended
31.12.2023
Uss

23,202,301

4,229,729
16,705,599
44,137,629

(4,305,411)
21,502

(4,283,909)

39,853,720

Note (i): Current tax for the year includes current tax charged to profit or loss of US$6,773,930 (2023: US$4,229,729)

and credited to other comprehensive income of US$4,660,375 (2023: USS Nil).
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10.

11.

TAXATION - continued

The tax charge for the year can be reconciled to the profit before taxation per the statement of profit or loss as follows:

Profit before taxation
Adjustments;
Profit from long term life business (note)
Profit before tax for overseas branch included in
profit from long term life business

Adjusted profit before tax

Tax at the Hong Kong Profits Tax
rate of 16.5% (2023: 16.5%)
Tax on life insurance business in Hong Kong (note)
Tax effect of non-taxable income
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses
Effect of concessionary tax rate
Effect of different tax rate of the branch
operating in other jurisdictions
{Over)/under provision of tax in prior years
Difference in accounting standards
Adjustment due to RBC adoption
Overseas withholding tax

Taxation

Year ended
31.12.2024
US$

411,663,614

Year ended
31.12.2023
USs$

606,072,121

(380,472,409) (609,740,420)
14,937,905 32,088,267
46,129,110 29,319,968

7,611,303 4,837,794
23,684,133 23,002,056
(992,345) (847,388)
511,620 2,695,144
(2,836,088) 313,986
(487,884) (2,003,738)
(6,833,213) 21,502
(340,251) (4,871,235)
764,346 -
18,193,969 16,705,599
39,275,590 39,853,720

Note: Under the Hong Kong Inland Revenue Ordinance, assessable profits from the business of life insurance are deemed

to be 5 percent of net premium income for the year,

Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% (2023: 16.5%) of the estimated assessable profits for the year. Overseas

taxation is calculated at the rate prevailing in the respective jurisdiction,

DIVIDENDS

Ordinary shares
Final paid -US$1.49
(2023: US$0.73) per share
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Year ended
31.12.2024
Us$

287,700,000
287,700,000

Year ended
31.12.2023
USS

127,600,000
127,600,000
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12.

INTANGIBLE ASSETS

COST

At 1 January 2023
Exchange difference
Additions

At 31 December 2023
Exchange difference
Additions

At 31 December 2024

AMORTISATION
At | Januvary 2023
Exchange difference
Charged for the year

At 31 December 2023
Exchange difference
Charged for the year

At 31 December 2024

NET BOCK VALUES
At 31 December 2024

At 31 December 2023

Deferred
Origination
Career and Costs
production (HKFRS 9
bonus contracts) Total
US§ UsH Uss
1,030,950 524,898,223 525,929,173
(478) (243,059) (243,537)
155,598 19,242 174,840
1,186,070 524,674,406 525,860,476
6,206 2,745,221 2,751,427
- 13,232 13,232
1,192,276 527,432,859 528,625,135
1,021,214 169,390,712 170,411,926
(473) (78,438) (78,911)
41,749 15,799,335 15,841,084
1,062,490 185,111,609 186,174,099
5,560 068,548 974,108
52,137 18,282,243 18,334,380
1,120,187 204,362,400 205,482,587
72,089 323,070,459 323,142,548
123,580 339,562,797 339,686,377

Career bonus and production bonus are offered under an “Experience Hire Program” by the Company starting from

2009. The bonuses are then amortised on a straight line basis over 3 years.

Both career bonus and production bonus net of accumulated amortisation is subjected to an annual impairment

assessment.

Deferred Origination Costs (“DOC”) correspond to the deferred contract costs (such as incremental costs of obtaining
a contract or costs directly related to fulfilling a contract) of investment contracts with no discretionary participation
features but with an investment management service. They are amortized by taking into account projections of fees
collected over the life of the contracts. The amortization of DOC is reviewed at each closing date to reflect changes in
assumptions and experience. These assets are also tested for recoverability. As DOC are reported gross of unearned
fees reserves, these unearned fees reserves are separately recognized as liabilities and are amortized over the contract
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13. PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Furniture,
Leasehold fixtures and
improvements equipment
Uss Uss
COST
At 1 January 2023 8,048,597 3,085,566
Exchange difference (1,492) (283)
At 31 December 2023 8,047,105 8,085,283
Exchange difference 16,851 3,199
At 31 December 2024 8,063,956 8,088,482
DEPRECIATION
At 1 January 2023 6,504,768 7,811,550
Exchange difference (305) (156)
Provided for the year 250,188 52,318
At 31 December 2023 6,814,151 7,863,712
Exchange difference 10,400 2,039
Provided for the year 251,497 52,591
At 31 December 2024 7,076,048 7,918,342
NET BOOK VALUE
At 31 December 2024 987,908 170,140
At 31 December 2023
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1,232,954

221,571

Total
Us$

16,134,163
(1,775)

16,132,388

20,050

16,152,438

14,376,318
(961)
302,506

14,677,863

12,439
304,088

14,994,390

1,158,048

1,454,525
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AXA CHINA REGION INSURANCE COMPANY (BERMUDA) LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2024

14.

LLEASES
(a) Amounts recognised in the statement of financial position

The statement of financial position shows the following amounts relating to leases:
At 31.12.2024

US$
Right-of-use assets
Buildings 1,302,391
Lease payable
Current 1,163,446
Non-current 158,898
1,362,344
{b) Amounts recognised in the statement of profit or loss
The statement of profit or loss shows the following amounts relating to leases:
Year ended
31.12.2024
USS
Depreciation charge of right-of-use assets
Buildings (1,124,234)
Interest expense (86,458)

At31.12.2023

US$
2,413,994
1,107,586

1,355,249
2,462,835

Year ended
31.12.2023
Us$

(1,138,523)

(108,620}

The additions for right-of-use assets in 2024 were nil (2023: US$3,349,035). The total cash outflow for leases in 2024

was US$1,199,836 (2023: US$1,214,826).

(© The Company’s leasing activities and how these accounted for

The Company leases various offices. Rental confracts are typically made for fixed period of 24 months,

Lease terms are negotiated on an individual basis and contain different terms and conditions. The lease agreements do
not impose any covenants other than the security interests in the leased assets that are held by the lessor. L.ease assets

may not be used as security for borrowing purposes.
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13. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

At31.12.2024 At31.12.2023

USs Us$
Unlisted shares, at cost 730,909,459 275,863,373
Accumulated impairment loss - -
730,909,459 275,863,373
Unlisted unit trusts, at fair value 115,384,284 114,282,831
846,293,743 390,146,204

Details of the subsidiaries as at 31 December 2024 are as follows:

Proportion of

nominal value of Number of
Place of Class of issued capital Number of issued
Name of company incorporation  shares held held by the Company  shares held shares Principal activities
Directly Indirectly
AXA China Region Insurance  Hong Kong Ordinary  100% - 19,940,000 19,940,000 Insurance underwriter
Company Limited
Swiss Privilege Limited Hong Kong Ordinary  100% - 100,000 100,000 Insurance agency
AXA China S.A. (note b) France Ordinary  51% - 15,449,086 30,292,324 Invesiment holding
AXA Wealth Management Hong Kong Ordinary - 100% 200,000,000 200,000,000 Insurance underwriter
(HK) Limited {note ¢)
AXA Life Insurance Hong Kong Ordinary - 100% 600,000 600,000 Running off the long {erm
Company Limited (note d) and general insurance business
written in prior year
Proportion of
Place of voting rights
Name of company incorporation held by the Compaay Principal activities
AXA Tian Ping Insurance China 100% Insurance agency and
Distribution Company Limited distribution management
Services
AXA International Reinsurance China 100% General insurance reinsurance
(Shanghai) Company Limited
(Tormerly known as XL
Reinsurance (China) Company
Limited) (note €)
Percentage of Number of
Place of Classof  units held Numberof  units in
Name of unit trusts incorporation  shares held (directly) units held issue Principal activities
AXA Unit Trusts - Asia Multi-Factor
Advantage Fund Hong Kong  Class“A”  99.44% 1,576,719 1,585,521 Unit trust

(a) The financial statements of the subsidiaries have not been consolidated as the Company is a subsidiary of AXA,
which is incorporated in France and prepares consolidated financial statements available for public use which
comply with International Financial Reporting Standards, These financial statements are obtainable at
WWW. axd. con.

(b) 51% of the shares in AXA China SA were transferred from AXA to the Company on 4 October 2024,

{c) All of the shares in AXA Wealth Management (HK) Limited were transferred from AXA China Region Limited
to AXA China Region Insurance Company Limited on 24 June 2024,
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15.

16.

INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES — continued

(d) All of the shares in AXA Life Insurance Company Limited were transferred from AXA ASIA SA to AXA China
Region Insurance Company Limited on 2 July 2024,

(e} All of the shares in AXA International Reinsurance (Shanghai) Company Limited were transferred from XL
Reinsurance America Inc and XL Insurance Company SE to the Company on 1 April 2024,

INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES

At31.12.2024 At31.12.2023
USS US$
Unlisted unit trust, at fair value 104,351,178 103,298,055

Dividend received 1,563,280 1,040,771

Particulars of the Company’s associates as at 31 December 2024 are as follows:

Percentage of Number of
Place of Class of  units held Number of  units in
Name of unit {rust incorporation  shares held  (directly) units held issue Principal activities
Australian Hotels Real Estate Fund Australia NA 35.00% 70 200  Unit trust
Australian BTR Australia NA 45.02% 450 1,000  Unit trust
Moorebank Logistics Park Australia NA 20.00% 2,000 10,000  Unit trust

The investment in associates are not accounted for using the equity method as the ultimate holding company, AXA,
prepares consolidated financial statements available for public use which comply with the International Financial
Reporting Standards. These financial statements are obtainable at www.axa.com.

Key financial information of the Company’s associates are provided as follows:

At31.12.2024 At31,12,2023
US$ US$
Net assets 268,897,128 278,257,392
Year ended Year ended
31.12.2024 31.12.2023
US$ Us$

Loss for the year (11,262,767) {12,733,502)
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17.

GV

INVESTMENTS IN SECURITIES

The Company manages certain investment portfolios on behalf of its group entities. Please refer to note 29
for details. The following represents the Company’s own share in the investment portfolios.

31 December 2024

Investments in securities
Government bonds

Other debt securities

Equities securities

Unit trust investment

Private companies
Total Investments in securities

31 December 2023

Investments in securities
Government bonds

Other debt securities

Equities securities

Unit trust investment

Private companies

Total Investments in securities

AC FYOCI FVTPL Total
Designated Mandatory
US5000 US3000 Uss*000 Uss$*000 US5'000
- 4,849,524 93,602 5,782 4,948,908
- 8,676,238 - 95,770 8,772,008
- 3,538,579 - 13,891 3,552,470
- 6,891,715 6,891,715
- 124,118 124,118
- 17,064,341 93,602 7,131,276 24,289,219
AC FVOCI FVTPL Total
Designated  Mandatory
US$000 Us$'000 US$'000 US$’000 USs$’000
- 4,017,869 200,768 5,120 4,223,757
- 3,101,232 - 96,973 8,198,205
- 2,796,643 - 13,417 2,810,060
- - - 5,354,080 5,354,080
- - - 114,036 114,036
- 14,915,744 200,768 5,583,626 20,700,138

Certain US Government bonds have been designated as FVTPL. The maximum exposure to credit risk of these

financial assets is minimal and not hedged by the use of credit derivatives or similar instruments.

(b) The Company has designated the following equity investments as at FVOCI:
Consumer
31 December goods and Basic
2024 Finangial Services Energy Communication Industrial Materials Technolopgy Others Total
US5'000 US5°000 US$7000 US$7000 US$°000  US$°000 USS000  US5000 US8000
Fair Value | 764,908 801,711 4,925 576,624 281,209 145,027 838,809 35,366 3,538,579
Dividend | 35,379 23,748 197 11,677 8416 12,731 9477 721 102,346
Consumer
31 December goods and Basic
2023 Financial Services Energy Commuaication Industrial Materials Technology Others Total
US8°000 US8$000 US5'000 USs’000 US$'600 US$°000 Us$'00 HKS$ 000 HK$000
Fair Value 634,702 813,303 7,774 366,839 | 201,753 [ 212910 | 539,154 | 20,117 ] 2,796,643
Dividend 32,820 20,312 262 1,534 | 8881 | 11,858 | 6315 | 1634 | 89,606
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17.

INVESTMENTS IN SECURITIES - continued

Investment in subsidiaries
Investment in associates

Debt securities

Equities securities

Private companies

Unit trust investment
Derivative financial instrument
Other Receivable

Cash and cash equivalents
Repurchase obligations and debts instruments liabilities
Reinsurance asset

Total

- 76 -

(c) The fair value of underlying items under Direct participating contracts are as below:

Direct Direct
participating participating
contracts contracts
31 Dec 2024 31 Dec 2023
US$000 US$’000
115,384 114,283
104,016 102,544
11,876,054 10,241,555
3,550,711 3,151,970
124,118 114,036
5,944,769 5,152,953
(338,513) (395,854)
150,595 122,445
101,992 133,199
(2,215,813} (1,529,001}
1,191,035 1,059,169
20,604,348 18,267,299
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17.

INVESTMENTS IN SECURITIES - continued
{d) Interests in Structured Entities

In accordance with HKFRS 12 “Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities”, a structured entity (“SE”) is an entity that
has been designed so that voting or similar rights are not the dominant factor in deciding who controls the entity, such
as when any voting rights relate to administrative tasks only and the relevant activities are directed by means of
contractual arrangements.

In assessing the significance of a SE for disclosure purposes, the Company considers the nature of the Company’s
relationship with the SEs including whether they are sponsored by the Company. In addition, the significance of the
relationship with the SE to the Company is assessed including consideration of factors such as the Company’s
investment in the SE as a percentage of the Company’s total assets, the Company’s aggregate investment return from
the SE as a percentage of the Company’s total revenue and the Company’s exposure to any other risks from its
involvement with the SE.

The Company has investinent relationships with a variety of unlisted unit trusts and other entities (“Other Entities™),
which result from its direct investment in their debt or equity and which have been assessed for control. This category
includes, but is not limited to investments in money market fund, fixed income fund, equity fund, balance fund, power
and infrastructure, private equity and real estate, organised as limited partnerships and limited liability companies.
These Cther Entities are not sponsored by the Company. The Company’s maximum exposure to losses as a result of its
relationships with Other Entities is limited to its investment and amounts committed to be invested but not yet funded.
The income that the Company generates from these Other Entities is recorded in investment income and net realised
and unrealised gains/ (losses) on investiments. The Company provides no guarantees to other investors in these Other
Entities against the risk of financial loss.

For those Other Entities backing unit linked contracts, the Company retains legal title, however, returns from these are
atiributable to policy holders of the unit linked contracts. This category includes, but is not limited to investiments in
money market fund, fixed income fund, equity fund and balance fund. The Company does not bear the risk associated
with these assets.

The following table summaries the Company’s interest in unconsolidated structured entities:

As at 31 Dec 2024 As at 31 Dec 2023
US$000 US$000
Unit trust investment 243,543 -
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18. LOANS

Loan to a fellow subsidiary
Other unsecured loans

Current
Non-current

At31.12.2024

At31.12.2023

US$ USS
- 6,382,464
24,974 40,380
24,974 6,422,844
24,974 40,380
- 6,382,464

Loan to a fellow subsidiary of RMB Nil (2023: RMB45,000,000) was {ssued on 26 September 2022 bears interest rate

of 4.61% and the loan has been repaid on 17 January 2024,

The directors consider that the fair value of the loans approximately equals to the corresponding carrying value.

19. DEFERRED TAXATION

The movement in deferred tax assets/(liabilities) during the year is as follows:

Unrealised RBC

investment Tax one-off

gains/losses adjustment ECL

US§ US$ Uss$

At 1 January 2023 (1,219,171) - -
Credit for the year (note 10) 1,343,370 - 30,203
Exchange difference 565 - -
At 31 December 2023 124,764 - 30,203
Credit/{charge) for the year {note 10) 739,160 (2,818,608) 7,162
Exchange difference 652 - 158
At 31 December 2024 864,576 (2,818,608) 37,523
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19.

20.

DEFERRED TAXATION - continued

Accelerated
tax
depreciation Provisions
US§ USS
At 1 January 2023 (45,650) 16,662
{Charge)/credit for the year (note 10} (22,343) 841
Exchange difference 21 (8)
At 31 December 2023 {67,972) 17,495
(Charge)/eredit for the year (note 10) (22,429 899
Exchange difference (356) 93
Reclass - -
At 31 December 2024 (90,757) 18,487

Difference in

accounting
standards Total
Us$ USS
12,381,991 11,133,832
2,931,838 4,283,509
(5,736) (5,158)
15,308,093 15,412,583
5,793,679 3,699,863
80,099 80,646
1,268,667 1,268,667
22,450,538 20,461,759

The movement in deferred tax (liabilities)/assets recognised in other comprehensive income during the year is as

follows:

OClI related to Equity
Insurance contracts - instrument
OCI asset - OCI asset - insurance finance without
unrealised losses loss allowance  Income or expenses recyeling Total
USS US$ USss$ USs$ USss$

At 1 January 2023 3,742,206 - (7,783,040} 424,501  (3,616,333)
Credit/(Charge)

for the year 3,501,089 (30,203) 4.586,578 (1,470,669) 6,586,795
Exchange difference - - - (19h (197
At 31 December 2023 7,243,295 {30,203} (3,196,462) (1,046,365) 2,970,265
Credit/(Charge)

for the year 3,364,811 (7,162) (2,572,719) 421,049 1,205,979
Exchange difference - {158) - (158)
Reclass - - (1,893,983) 625,316  (1,268,667)
At 31 December 2024 10,608,106 (37,523) (7,663,164) 2,907,419
SHARE CAPITAL AND RESERVES
Share Capital:

Number of Share
shares capital
USS$

Ordinary shares at par value of US$1 each:
Authorised:
Balance at 1 January 2023, 31 December 2023 and 31 December 2024 244,000,000 244,000,000
Issued and fully paid:
Balance at 1 January 2023 175,782,800 175,782,800
New issues during the year - -
Balance at 31 December 2023 175,782,800 175,782,800
New issues during the year 16,999,700 16,999,700
Balance at 31 December 2024 192,782,500
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20, SHARE CAPITAL AND RESERVES — continued
Reserves:
Share premium

Share premium is the amount received by the Company from the issuance of shares at a price higher than the par value,

Fair value reserve
The fair value reserve comprises:

e The cumulative net change in the fair value of debt securities measured at fair value through other comprehensive
income held at the end of the reporting period plus the related loss allowance recognised in profit or loss until
the assets are derecognised or reclassified.

e  The cumulative net change in the fair value of equity securities measured at FVOCI.

o  Cash flow hedge reserve which comprises the effective portion of the cumulative net change in the fair value of

hedging instruments used in cash flow hedges pending subsequent recognition in profit or loss or directly
included in the initial cost of other carrying amount of a non-financial asset or non financial liability.

Insurance finance reserve

The insurance finance reserve comprises the cumulative insurance finance income or expenses recognised in other
comprehensive income.
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21,

INSURANCE AND REINSURANCE CONTRACTS
21.1 Reconciliation with the statement of financial position

The reconciliation of amounts presented in the statement of financial position with the carrying amount of
insurance contracts and investment contracts with DPF, as disclosed below in note 21.2 to note 21.3, is
formalised as follows:

Reconciliation from the Statement of financial position to the Notes to the Financial Statements — Insurance

Insurance contract liabilities
Insurance contract assets
Net position

Receivables arising from direct insurance and inward reinsurance
operations

Payables arising from direct insurance and inward reinsurance
operations

Carrying amount of insurance contracts and investment

At31.12.2024
US§

25,332,472,585
(415,749,441)

At31.12.2023
Uss

23,070,540,238
(377,191,114)

24,916,723,144

547,315,461

(1,039,425,923)

22,693,349,124

535,817,448

(886,876,028)

24,424,612,682

22,342,290,544

contracts with discretionary participation features, as
disclosed in notes to the financial statements

Reconciliation from the Statement of financial position to the Notes to the Financial Statements — Reinsurance

At31.12.2024 At31.12.2023
US$ Uss

Reinsurance contract assets
Reinsurance contract liabilities

5,051,396,568
(29,272,179)

5,058,602,111
(70,716,461)

Net position 5,022,124,389 4.987,885,650

Payables arising from outward reinsurance operations

264,575,819 309,645,307

Receivables arising from outward reinsurance operations
(423,608,080} (266,972,250)
Carrying amount of reinsurance contracts held, as disclosed in 4,863,092,128 5,030,558,707

notes to the financial statements
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AXA CHINA REGION INSURANCE COMPANY (BERMUDA) LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2024

21, INSURANCE AND REINSURANCE CONTRACTS - continued

215 Insurance revenue and the CSM by transition method

Insurance contracts and investment contracts with DPF

Contracts
under
modified Contracts
retrospective under fair All other
Note approach value approach contracts Total
Uss$ USS Uss$ USss
Insurance revenue 223,394,373 595,881,401 387,044,008 1,206,319,782
CSM as at 1 January 2024 731,268,719 4,619,979,787 431,606,148 5,782,854,654
Changes that relate to current
service
CSM recognised in profit or loss (32270917) (312,515,675 (34,900,941) (379,687,533)
for the services received
Changes that relate to future
service
S]*;aggii‘“ estimates that adjust (256,709,775) (175,775,235) 117,401,078 (315,083,932)
Contra<_:ts initially recognised in ) i 216,834,722 216,834.722
the period
Finance expenses from 20,072,023 2,273,119 4,636,271 26,981,413
insurance contracts issued
Effect of movements in 3,826,173 24,172,838 2,258,267 30,257,278
exchange rate
Total changes in the statement
of profit or loss and other (265,082,496) (461,844,953) 306,229,397 (420,698,052)
comprehensive income
CSM as at 31 December 2024 466,186,223 4,158,134,834 737,835,545 5,362,156,602
Contracts
under
modified Contracts
retrospective under fair All other
Note approach value approach contracts Total
us$ Us$ Uss USs
Insurance revenue 229,118,730 628,375,045 201,577,179 1,059,070,954
CSM as at 1 January 2023 860,062,166 4,813,823,999 141,168,627 5,815,054,792
Changes that relate to current
service
CSM recognised in profit or loss
for the services received (45,352,121) (347,096,871) (20,090,556) (412,539,548)
Changes that relate to future
service
Changes In estimates that adjust (106,389,891) 138,318,480 76,878,122 108,806,711
Contrai‘:ts initially recognised in R - 230,759,118 230,759,118
the period
Finance expenses from 23,346,828 17,163,286 2,956,207 43,466,321
insurance contracts issued
Effect of movements in
exchange rate (398,263) (2,229,107) {65,370) (2,692,740)
Total changes in the statement
of profit or loss and other {128,793,447) (193,844,212) 290,437,521 (32,200,138)
comprehensive income
CSM as at 31 December 2023 731,268,719 4,619,979,787 431,606,148 5,782,854,654
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AXA CHINA REGION INSURANCE COMPANY (BERMUDA) LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2024

21, INSURANCE AND REINSURANCE CONTRACTS - continued

21.5  Insurance revenue and the CSM by transition method - continued

Reinsurance contracts held

Contracts
under
modified Contracts
retrospective under fair All gther
Note approach value approach contracts Total
Uss Uss$ USS Us$
Reinsurance expense - 159,124,801 55,254,991 214,379,792
CSM as at 1 January 2024 - 478,609,125 (31,512,373 447,096,752
Changes that relate to current
service
CSM recognised in profit or loss - (24,783,684) 4,651,612 (20,132,072)
for the services received
Changes that relate to future
service
Changes in estimates that adjust
the CSM - 36,023,361 (16,196,977} 19,826,384
Contra?ts initially recognised in ) ) (15,708,767) (15,708,767)
the period
Finance income from
reinsurance contract held - 7,035,711 (1,437,329) 5,598,382
Effect of movements in
exchange rate - 2,504,197 (164,880) 2,339,317
Total changes in the statement
of profit or loss and other - 20,779,585 (28,856,341) (8,076,756)
comprehensive income
CSM as at 31 December 2024 - 499,358,710 {60,368,714) 439,019,996
Contracts
under
modified Contracts
retrospective under fair All other
Note approach value approach contracts Total
USS US$ USS Us$
Reinsurance expense - 174,498,440 63,406,271 237,904,711
CSM as at 1 January 2023 - 535,794,037 (1,681,063) 534,112,974
Changes that relate to current
service
CSM recognised in profit or loss
for the services received - (30,374,984) 1,528,267 (28,846,717)
Changes that relate to future
service
Changes in estimates that adjust
the CgM J - (34,657,027) (19,096,075) (53,753,102)
Contrac_:ts initially recognised in ) i (12,215,308) (12,215,808)
the period
Finance income from - 8,005,205 (48,472) 8,046,733
reinsurance contract held
Effect of movements in
exchange rate - (248,106} 778 (247,328)
Total changes in the statement
of profit or loss and other - (57,184,912) (29,831,310) (87,016,222)
comprehensive income
CSM as at 31 December 2023 - 478,609,125 (31,512,373 447,096,752
.97 .



AXA CHINA REGION INSURANCE COMPANY (BERMUDA) LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2024

B

21. INSURANCE AND REINSURANCE CONTRACTS - continued

21.6 Expected Recognition of the Contractual Service Margin

[ SR e T T

1

2023
Insurance Insurance
contracts and contracts and
investment investment
contracts with Reinsurance contracts with Reinsurance
DPF confracts held DPF contracts held
US$ USS Uss Us$
1 year or less 377,053,835 29,087,825 395,692,254 27,072,325
[-2 years 349,636,480 26,780,816 372,350,931 26,705,646
2-3 years 325,474,068 23,460,306 349,390,222 25,851,243
3-4 years 303,011,244 21,138,327 326,489,517 23,510,994
4-5 years 280,567,927 19,616,616 303,926,246 21,716,749
5-10 years 1,138,933,053 87:984;084 1,218,704,343 88,914,815
More than 10 years 2,587,479,995 230,952,022 2,817,301,141 233,324,980
Total 5,362,156,602 439,019,996 5,783,854,654 447,096,752

21.7  Investment Return in OCI related to contracts measured under modified retrospective or fair value approach

2024 2023

USs$ US$
Beginning Balance (1,388,707,623) (1,742,659,871)
Net Change in Fair Value 35,448,162 689,109,563
Net Amount reclassified to P&L 35,184,992 (124,178,132}
Rebalancing (67,356,125} (210,979,183)
Ending Balance (1,385,430,594) (1,388,707,623)
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AXA CHINA REGION INSURANCE COMPANY (BERMUDA) LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2024

22,

23.

INVESTMENT CONTRACT LIABILITES WITHOUT DPF (gross)

Financial liabilities — investment contracts represent the amount which the policyholders of investment contracts
without DPF are entitled to as at the end of the reporting period. The fair values, determined based on the fair value of
underlying financial assets and derivatives at the end of the reporting period, approximate to the corresponding carrying

amounts.

Reserves

At beginning of year

Premiums/contributions received

Fee deducted from account balance

Impact of change in assumptions

Change in resilience reserve and voluntary reserve

Release in reserve on claims, surrenders and maturities,
and unit appreciation/depreciation

Atend of year

Unearned Fees Reserve

At beginning of year
Exchange difference
Deferrals

Interest Accrued
Amortisation

At end of year

PENSIONS — DEFINED CONTRIBUTION PLANS

Year ended
31.12.2024
US$

1,142,484,498

36,016,643
(57,651,997)
(3,884,509)

1,262,170

36,067,257

1,154,294,062

31.12.2024
Us$

141,564,320
740,700
6,878,770
7,299,328

(19,963,172)
136,519,946

Year ended
31.12.2023
Uss

1,281,886,839
49,088,373

(63,193,839)
19,358,715

(3,625,274)

(141,030,316)
1,142,484,498

31.12.2023
USss

147,196,709
(68,161)

9,282,728

7,503,782

(22,350,738)
141,564,320

The pensions-defined contribution plans for the current and prior years were borne by an insurer subsidiary.
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AXA CHINA REGION INSURANCE COMPANY (BERMUDA) LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2024

24,

OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS AND FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

QOther financial assets:

The amounts due from group companies are unsecured, non interest bearing and due on demand.

The debtors and amounts due from group companies at the end of the reporting period are stated at amortised cost using the
effective interest method less any impairment losses.

All of these balances are classified as current assets,

Other than those disclosed above, none of these financial assets is either past due or impaired.
Other financial liabilities:

Debt Instruments Liabilities

Total Return Swaps

The Company entered into a structured financing arrangement that consists of a two-step process (1) a sale of a liquid
government bond with (2} a corresponding total return swap with the transferee whereby all of the interest payment and
principal redempiion cash flows from the underlying bond are remitted back to the Company in exchange for agreed
upon payments by the Company. Throughout the term of the agreement, the Company will receive the nominal bond
coupons and pay a fixed financing cost to the counterparty bank. The term of the arrangement is until the maturity of
the underlying bond. At the end of the agreement term, the asset maturity redemption amount is returned to the Company
and the Company repays the counterparty bank the financing amount which could be either bond notional or initial
price.

The collateral is marked to market daily, and the fund manager is responsible for checking the valuation, monitoring
the compliance of the collateral, and controlling the margin calls.

Repurchase Obligations

The Company entered into Global Master Repurchase Agreements (“GMRA”) with several financial institutions to be
able to enter into repurchase transactions (agreements to sell securities and repurchase them at a pre-defined price and
on a pre-defined date, with a fee).

Pursuant to an Agency Agreement, the Company autherised a fund manager to act as its agent to arrange and administer
the repurchase transactions within the parameters set forth in the agreement. In consideration of the services provided,
the Company agrees to pay the agent a fee based on the notional amount of the repurchase transaction. The transaction
adheres to the guidelines and requirements agreed to by all parties.

The securities sold under the transaction are marked to market daily, and the fund manager is responsible for checking
the valuation, monitoring the compliance of the securities, and controlling the margin calls.

The following table specifies the amounts subject to total return swaps which do not qualify for de-recognition at each
year/period end:

Ar31.12.2024 At31.12.2023

US$’000 Us$*000
Repurchase agreement 713,558 -
Total return swap 1,642,787 1,604,213
2,356,345 1,604,213
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AXA CHINA REGION INSURANCE COMPANY (BERMUDA) LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2024

24.

23.

OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS AND FINANCIAL LIABILITIES ~ continued
The amounts due to group companies are unsecured, non interest bearing and due on demand.

Creditors and accrued charges and amount due to group companies are subsequently measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest method.

The directors consider the carrying values of the above items approximately equal to their fair values.

All of these balances are classified as current Habilities.

EQUITY COMPENSATION BENEFITS

Certain eligible employees of AXA SA and its subsidiaries (the “AXA Group”) have been granted options to subscribe
to AXA shares at fixed prices in AXA SA, the ultimate holding company of the Company, under the AXA SA Stock
Option Plan.

The grantee may exercise the option in accordance with the following schedule:

* 1/3 of the options granted are vested and exercisable on or after the second anniversary of the grant date
* 2/3 of the options granted are vested and exercisable on or after the third anniversary of the grant date
»  All options granted are vested and exercisable on or after the fourth anniversary of the grant date.

For the 2012 plan and before, a performance condition is applied for Stock Option grant more than 5,000: the last
tranche when vested will become exercisable only if the AXA share price has performed at least as well as the
EuroStoxx Insurance index either since the grant date or over the last 3-year period.

For the 2013 Plan, the performance condition is applied to the last third of the grant and will become exercisable as
follows;

* If the performance of the AXA share is equal to 75% of the performance of the Eurostoxx Insurance Index over
the same period, 50% of the options will be exercisable

¢ Ifthe performance of the AXA share is equal to 100% of the performance of the Eurostoxx Insurance Index over
the same period, 100% of the options will be exercisable

e Ifthe performance of the AXA share range between 75% and 100% of the performance of the Eurostoxx Insurance
Index over the same period, the number of options exercisable will vary proportionately from 50% to 100%

Since 2014 SXIP Insurance Index replaces EuroStoxx Insurance index and a new vesting schedule applies to the stock
option grants:

» 1/3 of the options granted are vested and exercisable on or after the third anniversary of the grant date
s  2/3 of the options granted are vested and exercisable on or after the fourth anniversary of the grant date
s  All options granted are vested and exercisable on or after the fifth anniversary of the grant date.

The exercise price of the stock options ranged from Euro 9.76 to Euro 33.78 with the average remaining anniversary of
two to four years of grant date.

In 2019, in order to simplify AXA’s compensation pelicy and in line with market practice and feedbacks of many

institutional investors, AXA’s Board of Directors, decided to cease awarding stock options to corporate officers and
AXA employees.
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AXA CHINA REGION INSURANCE COMPANY (BERMUDA) LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2024

23,

EQUITY COMPENSATION BENEFITS - continued

AXA SHAREPLAN

For the past 30 years, the AXA Group has continuously offered employees the opportunity to become AXA
shareholders through the annual employee share offering (the “SharePlan™), comprising two investment options: the
Traditional Plan and the Guarantee plus Plan.

Under the AXA Shareplan, AXA offers employees of the AXA group opportunity to invest and hold units in funds in
this shareplan which in turn hold AXA shares. This shareplan enables such employees to purchase AXA shares
indirectly through the funds at fixed discounts to AXA share reference prices.

SHARES SUBJECT TO PERFORMANCE CONDITIONS (INTERNATIONAL PERFORMANCE SHARES AND
INTERNATIONAL RESTRICTED SHARES)

Shares subject to performance conditions are designed to recognize and motivate the Group’s best talents and core skills
by aligning the individuals® interests with the overall performance of the AXA Group, and the corresponding
operational Entity/Business Unit as well as with the stock performance of the AXA share over the medium-long term.

Since 2013, beneficiaries have received Performance Shares plans. From 2022, the Board of Directors, upon
recommendation of the Compensation and Governance Committee, may grant Performance Shares to Senior
Management, including members of the Management Committee and Restricted Shares to other beneficiaries.

Rules regarding shares subject to performance conditions:

Each beneficiary receives an initial preliminary allocation of shares subject to performance conditions (Performance
Shares or Restricted Shares) which is then used as a reference to calculate the number of shares that will be definitely
granted at the end of a 3-year performance period.

During the performance period, all shares subject to performance conditions initially granted, are integrally subject to
performance criteria regardless of the beneficiary’s status.

For Performance Shares and Restricted Shares, the achievement rate of the performance criterion {performance rate) is
used to determine the number of AXA shares which will be definitively acquired by the beneficiaries at the end of the
acquisition period, under the condition that the beneficiary is still employed by the AXA Group. The number of AXA
shares definitively granted shall therefore be equal to the number of rights to AXA shares initially granted multiplied
by the performance rate, which may not exceed 130% for the Performance Shares and 100% for the Restricted Shares.

Furthermore, for the Performances Shares and Restricted Shares, in the event that no dividend would be proposed for
payment (outside regulatory constraint) by the Board of Directors to the Company shareholders for any of the fiscal
years of the performance period, the number of shares definitively acquired shall be automatically divided by two.

AXA MILES

In 2012, AXA Group has announced the grant of 50 AXA Miles to all AXA Group employees. Every eligible employee
was awarded 50 AXA Miles in March 2012, which convert into shares at the end of the acquisition period in March
2016. Out of the 50 AXA Miles, 25 have been granted without any particular conditions at grant date and 25 have been
actually granted in March 2013 as performance conditions have been reached at that date.

In March 2016, all granted AXA Miles in 2012 were vested by eligible employees and have been converted to AXA
shares.
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AXA CHINA REGION INSURANCE COMPANY (BERMUDA) LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2024

25.

26.

EQUITY COMPENSATION BENEFITS - continued

The following tables disclose details of the relevant share options held by employees of the Company and movements
in such holdings during the year:

Number of units per plan type

AXA International
SA Stock Performance
Option Plan Share Plan

Outstanding at 1 January 2023 - 44,990
Granted during the year - 17,955
Adjustment (due to performance conditions / other reason) - 651
Exercised during the year - (16,891)
Qutstanding at 31 December 2023 - 46,705
Granted during the year - 22,327
Adjustment (due to performance conditions / other reason) - 1,777
Exercised during the year - (15,709)
Outstanding at 31 December 2024 - 55,100

Exercisable at end of year - -

The expenses arising from equity-settled during the year relate to options granted to certain eligible employees for
services provided to the Company and other group companies. Accordingly, the entire cost of these options,
representing the amortisation of the relevant share-based plans for the period up to 31 December 2024 of US$3,050,291
(2023: US$2,643,590), was absorbed by a subsidiary.

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

Capital commitments contracted for at the end of the reporting period but not yet incurred is as follows:

At31.12.2024 At 31.12,2023
Us$ Uss

Unlisted unit trust investments 525,029,978 298,081,304
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27.

28.

ANALYSIS OF THE BALANCES OF CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

At 31.12.2024 At31.12.2023
US§ Uss
Deposits with banks
Fixed term 109,625,183 111,424,136
Current accounts 456,333,111 1,241,195,098
Cash 2,280 2,269
565,960,574 1,352,621,503
Less:
Pledged bank deposits (note 30) (63,109,776) (59,666,681)
Fixed term bank deposits
with maturity over three months (46,515,407) (51,757,455)
456,335,391 1,241,197,367

Deposits with banks represent cash at current accounts with banks and deposits placed with various banks with terms
up to 1 year with interest rate up to 5.45% per annum (2023: 6.01% per annum).

The directors consider the carrying values of the above items approximately equal to their fair valees.

DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(a) Financial risk management

The Company enters into financial instruments, including derivative financial instruments, for hedging purposes. The
use of financial derivatives is governed by the policies approved by the Board of Directors, which provide written
principles on the use of financial derivatives, Compliance with policies and exposure Hmits is reviewed on a continuous
basis.

(b) Material accounting policies

Details of the material accounting policies and methods adopted, including the criteria of recognition, the basis of
measurement and the basis on which revenues and expenses are recognised, in respect of each class of financial asset,
financial liability and equity instrument are disclosed in note 3 to the financial statements.

(c) Derivatives

The Company uses derivatives as part of the normal investment management procedures. Derivatives are principally

used as an effective alternative to physical assets in order to achieve a desired level of total exposure to various asset
classes, and as a means to hedge against market movements.
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28.

DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued

Forward currency contracts
Interest rate swap

Equity options

Forward interest rate swap
Asset swap

Credit default swap
Swaption

Cross currency swap
Equity forward

Bond forward

Forward currency contracts
Interest rate swap

Equity options

Forward interest rate swap
Asset swap

Credit default swap
Swaption

Cross currency swap
Equity forward

Bond forward
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At31.12.2024

Assets
Uss

170,683,475
198

646,089
206,165,877
13,478,938

16,996,219
104,500,868
73,977,058

586,448,722

Liabilities
US$

55,230,277
404,319

600,016,089
368,430,582
119,142

3,269,110
23,963,350
174,309,318

1,225,742,187

At31.12.2023

Assets
Us$

27,111,923
31,216
5,674,047
235,667,452
15,988,277
669,455
45,780,182
107,391,635
3,537,271

42,193,730
484,045,188

Liabilities
US$

52,067,291
953,874
852,939
503,762,174
435,791,473
127,490
1,233,701
8,645,403
19,104,041

10,862,463

1,033,400,849



AXA CHINA REGION INSURANCE COMPANY (BERMUDA) LIMITED
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2024

28. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued
Contractual or
notional amounts

Forward currency contracts - bought
- sold
Equity options - long
- short
Forward interest rate swap
Interest rate swaps - long
- short
Asset swap
Bond forward
Credit default swap - long
- short
Swaption - long
- short
Equity forward - long
- short
Cross currency swap

At 31.12.2024
USs

16,177,024,047

(16,061,570,348)

267,744,240
7,368,305,810
940,000
(13,100,000)
2,550,368,575
3,349,900,000
6,400,000

5,971,500,000
562,296,050

(805,644,886)
4,322,698,133

At31.12.2023
USs$

12,385,743,153

(12,410,698,522)

432,899,928
(38,304,508)
4,962,859,983
2,200,000
(27,200,000)
2,550,368,575
2,110,000,000
6,400,000
(116,500,000)
5,341,272,000
(500,000,000)
179,999,989
(206,676,399)
4,318,870,309

Derivatives held by the Company are valued on a fair value basis, which involves the calculation and recognition of
unrealised gains and losses on all current positions.

There are four major types of risks inherent in derivatives, these are:
¢  Market risk — the risk of loss due to a change in market conditions
o Liquidity risk — the risk that a transaction in a particular physical asset or derivative could have a detrimental
effect on its price; for example in the extreme, it may not be possible to sell the security
o  Credit risk — the risk that a loss will be incurred if a counterparty defaults on a contract
e  Operational risk — the risk of losses occurring as a result of inadequate systems and control, human error or
management failure

The Company has a Derivatives Policy which describes the objectives, authorisation and conditions of uses,
counterparty requirements, and operating procedures in order to manage the risks inherent in derivatives. Market risk
is controlled through a process of setting exposure limits to various asset classes and exposure limits to particular
heldings within an asset class.

29. NET ASSETS HELD ON BEHALF OF FELLOW SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY

The Company manages a combined non-linked investment portfolio of approximately US$424,555 (2023:
US$548,789,158) which are recorded in the name of the Company in accordance with the deed of trust dated 13 July
2009 entered with three of its subsidiaries. Included in this portfolio are investments (net of derivative liabilities) held
on behalf and for the benefit of Hong Kong-based insurer namely AXA China Region Insurance Company Limited
{an aggregate amount of 2024: US$300,698, 2023; US$233,231,294) in the AXA China Region Group. The financial
statements disclose the remaining balance of US$123,857 (2023: US$315,557,864) which is held for the benefit of the
Company.

30. PLEDGE OF ASSETS

The Company's Macau Branch has pledged its bank deposits of US$63,109,776 (2023: US$59,666,681) and debt
securities of US$1,051,359,448 (2023: US$852,080,265) to Autoridade Monetdria e Cambial de Macau as a guarantee
in respect of the required technical reserves.
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31.

32.

COMPARATIVE FIGURES

Certain comparative figures have been adjusted to conform with current vear presentation.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

During the year, the Company entered into the following major transactions with related parties:

Year ended Year ended
Notes 31.12.2024 31.12.2023
US$ USS

Reinsurance premiums to fellow subsidiaries a (31,922,471) {46,616,379)
Reinsurance premiums to the ultimate holding company a (41,174,649) (41,497,816)
Reinsurance recoveries from fellow subsidiaries a 35,136,749 44,610,644
Reinsurance recoveries from the ultimate holding company a 39,624,655 37,240,267
Reinsurance commissions from fellow subsidiaries a 5,211,828 6,788,414
Reinsurance commissions from the ultimate holding company a 946,099 1,067,527
Reinsurance assets from fellow subsidiaries a 4,221,907 24,606,445
Reinsurance assets from the ultimate holding company a 141,125,607 128,503,072
Reinsurance premiums from a subsidiary b 2,691,775 -
Reinsurance premiums from fellow subsidiaries b 16,011,880 4,726,178
Reinsurance premiums from the ultimate holding company b 4,288,851 -
Reinsurance recoveries to a subsidiary b {4,990,501) -
Reinsurance recoveries to fellow subsidiaries b (13,830,307) (2,367,917
Reinsurance recoveries to the ultimate holding company b {1,305,675) -
Reinsurance commissions to a subsidiary b (1,032,230) -
Reinsurance commissions to fellow subsidiaries b (2,284,739) (292,416)
Reinsurance commissions to the ultimate holding company b (750,170) -
Investment charges paid to fellow subsidiaries c (20,445,299) (18,636,846}
Interest income from the immediate holding company d 1,121,095 1,112,212
Interest income from non-insurer subsidiary e - 215,597
Allocation of management expenses from a

subsidiary f (210,258,373) {177,360,321)
Management expenses in respect of group services from

fellow subsidiaries g (3,446,879) -
Trademark fees to the ultimate holding company h (3,692,948) (3,504,543)
Acquisition of a subsidiary from fellow subsidiaries i (16,999,700) -
Acquisition of a subsidiary from the ultimate holding company

(436,115,372) -

Notes:

{a) The amounts relate to a reinsurance ceded arrangement made or payable with fellow subsidiaries and ultimate
holding company in the normal course of business.

(b) The amounts relate to the reinsurance accepted arrangements made with related group companies/fellow
subsidiaries/subsidiary including a reinsurance treaty with a fellow subsidiary for an accident and health
product with fully refundable features, Commissions are paid and received on such arrangements. All
reinsurance agreements are entered into in the normal course of business.

() The investment charges were made to a fellow subsidiary for the provision of the investment services
throughout the year based on the size of the investment portfolios.

(d) The floating rate of a debenture of HK$736 million was terminated on 6 June 2021 and renewed on 7 June
2021 which issued by an immediate holding company is unsecured and bearing interest at the fixed interest
rate of 1,18% per annum (2023: 1.18% per annum above Hong Kong Inter Bank Offer Rate (“HIBOR™)). The
debenture will be fully redeemed on or before 6 June 2026.

(e)

The loan to a non-insurer subsidiary is unsecured and bears interest at a fixed rate of 4.61% per annum was
issued for a term of three years commencing on 26 September 2022 and fully repaid on 17 January 2024,
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32,

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS - continued

®

(@

{(h
®

)
9]

®

(m)

Certain overhead costs borne by the group companies were allocated to the Company for sharing the common
services and facilities on time spent basis.

The Company entered into management service agreements with fellow subsidiaries, whereby the fellow
subsidiaries undertake to provide certain management services set out in the service agreements.
The trademark fees recharged from the ultimate holding company for the provision of brand usage.

All of the shares in AXA International Reinsurance (Shanghai} Company Limited was transferred from XL
Reinsurance America Inc and XL Insurance Company SE to the Company on 1 April 2024.

51% of the shares in AXA China SA were transferred from AXA SA to the Company on 4 October 2024.

Details of the Company’s balances with related parties are set out in the statement of financial position and
note 24 to the financial statements.

The Company manages a combined non-linked investinent portfolio on behalf of a subsidiary and fellow
subsidiaries, which are held by an investment custodian in the name of the Company, as described in note 29.

During the year, the Company obtained key management personnel services from its fellow subsidiary, AXA

China Region Insurance Company Limited. The key management personnel received unapportioned
remuneration of US$5,721,281 (2023: US$4,895,398).
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